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A constellation
of media businesses
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News Corporation’s global operations encompass the

fields of filmed entertainment, newspapers, pay and

free-to-air television, cable network programming,

book publishing, magazines and consumer marketing.

Just as our assets span the world, our vision spans 

art and humor, audacity and compassion, information

and innovation – whether in an American television

series, an Indian game show, an Australian newspaper,

an English sports broadcast or an international 

box-office hit.

Every day, hundreds of millions of people are 

entertained and enlightened by the authors 

and actors, printers and producers, reporters and 

directors who fulfill our mission. That mission 

remains unchanged after a half a century of

expansion and improvement: the creation and 

distribution of top-quality news, sports and 

entertainment around the world.



The News Corporation 

(a) Held by News Corporation's 82%-owned Fox Entertainment Group (FEG)
(b) Reflects percentage held by News Corporation's 82%-owned FEG
(c) Fox Regional Sports Networks are all 100%- owned except Fox Sports Net South, which is 88%-owned. 
(d) Represents the Company's economic interest. The Company continues to hold a 36% equity interest.

KDFW Dallas, TX
KDFI Dallas, TX
WFXT Boston, MA
WTTG Washington DC
WDCA Washington DC
WAGA Atlanta, GA
WJBK Detroit, MI
KRIV Houston, TX
KTXH Houston, TX
KMSP Minneapolis, MN
WFTC Minneapolis, MN
WTVT Tampa Bay, FL
KSAZ Phoeniz, AZ
KUTP Phoeniz, AZ
WJW Cleveland, OH
KDVR Denver, CO
WRBW Orlando, FL
WOFL Orlando, FL
KTVI St. Louis, MO
WDAF Kansas City, MO
WITI Milwaukee, WI
KSTU Salt Lake City, UT
WBRC Birmingham, AL
WHBQ Memphis, TN
WGHP Greensboro, NC
KTBC Austin, TX
WUTB Baltimore, MD
WOGX Gainesville, FL

ASIA
STAR

STAR Plus
STAR Movies
STAR News
STAR Mandarin Movies
STAR World
STAR Gold
STAR Chinese Channel

ESPN STAR Sports 50%
Channel [V]
Xing Kong Wei Shi
Vijay Television

LATIN AMERICA
Cine Canal (b) 23%
Telecine (b) 13%

AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
Premium Movie Partnership (b) 20%

Cable Network
Programming
UNITED STATES
FOX News Channel (a)
Fox Cable Networks Group (a)

FX
Fox Movie Channel
Fox Regional Sports Networks
(13 owned and operated) (c)
Regional Programming Partners (b) 40%
Fox Sports World
SPEED Channel
FUEL
Fox Pan American Sports (b) 38%
Rogers Sports Net (b) 20%
National Sports Partners (b) 50%
National Advertising Partners (b) 50%
National Geographic Channel - 

International (b) 50%
National Geographic Channel - 

Domestic (b) 67%

AUSTRALIA
Fox Sports Australia 50%

Filmed Entertainment
UNITED STATES
Fox Filmed Entertainment (a)

Twentieth Century Fox Film 
Corporation

Fox 2000 Pictures
Fox Searchlight Pictures
Fox Music
Twentieth Century Fox Home 

Entertainment
Twentieth Century Fox Licensing 

and Merchandising
Twentieth Century Fox Television
Fox Television Studios
Twentieth Television
Regency Television (b) 50%
Blue Sky Studios

AUSTRALIA
Fox Studios Australia (b) 50%

LATIN AMERICA
Fox Studios Baja (a)
Canal Fox (a)

Television
UNITED STATES
FOX Broadcasting Company (a)
Fox Television Stations (a)

WNYW New York, NY
WWOR New York, NY
KTTV Los Angeles, CA
KCOP Los Angeles, CA
WFLD Chicago, IL
WPWR Chicago, IL
WTXF Philadelphia, PA



The words “expect,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “predict,” “believe” and similar expressions and variations thereof are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. These statements appear in a number of places in this document and include statements regarding the intent, belief or current expectations
of The News Corporation Limited, its Directors or its Officers with respect to,  among other things, trends affecting the group’s financial condition or results of
operations. Readers of this document are cautioned that any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks and
uncertainties. The Company does not ordinarily make projections of its future operating results and undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.

n Limited

Newspapers
UNITED STATES
New York Post

UNITED KINGDOM
The Times
The Sunday Times
The Sun
News of the World
TSL Education

AUSTRALIA
More than 100 national, metropolitan,
suburban, regional and Sunday titles,
including the following:

The Australian
The Weekend Australian
The Daily Telegraph
The Sunday Telegraph
Herald Sun
Sunday Herald Sun
The Courier-Mail 42%
Sunday Mail (Brisbane) 42%
The Advertiser
Sunday Mail (Adelaide)
The Mercury
Sunday Tasmanian
The Sunday Times
Northern Territory News
Sunday Territorian

FIJI
The Fiji Times
Sunday Times
Nai Lalakai
Shanti Dut

PAPUA NEW GUINEA
Post-Courier 63%

Direct Broadcast 
Satellite Television
EUROPE
SKY Italia 80%

Sky Sport
Calcio Sky
Sky Cinema
Sky TG 24

British Sky Broadcasting 35%
Sky News
Sky Sports
Sky Travel
Sky One
Sky Movies

UNITED STATES
The DIRECTV Group (b) 34%

LATIN AMERICA
Sky Latin America DTH Platforms:

Mexico - Innova 30%
Brazil - Sky Brasil (d) 50%
Sky Multi-Country Partners 30%

AUSTRALIA
FOXTEL 25%

ASIA
Phoenix Satellite Television 38%
Hathway Cable and Datacom 26%
China Network Systems

(18 affiliated cable systems) various

Magazines and Inserts
UNITED STATES AND CANADA
News America Marketing

In-Store
FSI (SmartSource Magazine)
SmartSource iGroup
News Marketing Canada

The Weekly Standard
Gemstar-TV Guide International 41%

AUSTRALIA
INSIDEout
donna hay

Book Publishing
UNITED STATES, CANADA, EUROPE 
AND AUSTRALIA
HarperCollins Publishers

Other
EUROPE
NDS 78%
Broadsystem Ventures
Convoys Group
Sky Radio 93%
News Outdoor Group 75%
Balkan News Corporation

AUSTRALIA AND ASIA
National Rugby League 50%
News Interactive
Festival Mushroom Records
Newspoll 50%
UTV Software Communications 12%

As of June 30, 2004
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Fiscal 2004 was an outstanding
year for News Corporation.
Financially, strategically and
operationally, the Company
met – and in most cases
exceeded – all of its key
objectives for the year: record
revenues and profits in US$
terms; record cash flow gen-
eration; double-digit profit
gains at nearly all operating
segments; the completion of
the transformative DIRECTV
deal; the swift development
of SKY Italia; and, with 
the announcement of our
intention to reincorporate
the Company in the United
States later this calendar
year, the promise of a new
and more prosperous era for
News Corp. shareholders. 

Our success is due, in large
measure, to the diligence,
dedication and vision of the
Company’s management and
employees. Above all else,
each of us is guided by a
desire to give our customers
the two things they most
demand from a media compa-
ny: quality and choice.
Whether in our films or TV
shows, our newspapers or
books, our magazines or pay-
TV distribution platforms,
what inspires us at News
Corp. – this year as in every
year – is a desire to give our
readers and viewers higher
quality options when it
comes to the news, sports,
and entertainment products
they use. And if our financial
results prove nothing else, it
is that this year, as in previ-
ous years, we have delivered
on that promise. 

Last year, I wrote of our
intention to be as “integrated”
as we were “international,”
and as focused on delivering
short-term results as on
building long-term value.
Looking back on the achieve-
ments of the past 12 months,
it’s clear to me that our 
commitment to these prin-
ciples is what drove our 
success. 

We’ve now set the standard
for how a media company 
of the 21st century should
look. Our assets are global, 
with operations across 
five continents. Our assets
are diversified, encompass-
ing  businesses that create
content and those that 
distribute that content. Our
assets are balanced, between
those whose revenues are
dependent on advertising,
and those that are not. And

our assets are of varying
maturities, neatly divided
between those generating
significant profits today and
those positioned to deliver
growth tomorrow. 

This is why we were able 
to deliver such solid results
this past year. Full year rev-
enues rose 20 percent to US$21
billion and our operating
income increased 21 percent
to US$3.1 billion, both record
numbers for the Company. 
Our Filmed Entertainment,
Cable Network Programming,
Television, Book Publishing
and Newspapers segments
posted record profits. At the
same time, we significantly
strengthened our balance
sheet, continuing our pro-
gram to pay down debt.

And even as we enjoyed 
the success of this past 
year, we were also taking

decisive strategic steps that
we believe position us for
further growth in 2005 and
beyond.

Most importantly, this
past April, we announced 
our intention to change our 
place of incorporation from
Australia to the United
States. We undertook this
move for one reason: to 
create greater value for 
our shareholders. For more
than 80 years, the Company 
has proudly called Australia
its home. It is where the
Company was founded, nur-
tured, and from where we get
our entrepreneurial spirit.
Australia is our spiritual
home, and will always remain
so. But over the past two
decades, as more of the
Company’s revenues and
profits have come from our
US-based businesses, it has
become increasingly clear 
to us that without a pri-
mary listing on the New
York Stock Exchange and eli-
gibility on US indices, our
shareholders would never
experience the full benefits
of our achievements. 

Consequently, using a
process that will allow 
us to move our domicile
without financial cost to 
the Company or the over-
whelming majority of its 
shareholders, we have put
forth for your approval a plan
that the News Corporation
Board of Directors unani-
mously believes will make
the Company a more attrac-
tive investment for current
and future shareholders. The

Chief Executive’s Review

Year ended June 30, 2004 2003 2002

Revenues $ 29,428 $ 29,913 $ 29,014

Operating Income $ 4,302 $ 4,352 $ 3,542

Associated entities, before Other items $ 367 $ (159) $ (314)

Income before Other items $ 2,366 $ 1,898 $ 1,217

Other items, net $ (54) $ (90) $ (13,179)

Net Profit $ 2,312 $ 1,808 $ (11,962)

Earnings per share

Income before Other items $ 0.42 $ 0.36 $ 0.23

Net Profit $ 0.41 $ 0.34 $ (2.43)

Financial Position

Assets $ 73,738 $ 67,747 $ 71,441

Debt $ 12,470 $ 12,429 $ 15,441

Financial Highlights
(Australian dollars, in Millions except for Earnings Per Share)

Rupert Murdoch, Chairman and Chief Executive
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Year ended June 30, 2004 2003 2002

Revenues $ 20,959 $ 17,474 $ 15,195

Operating Income $ 3,064 $ 2,532 $ 1,855

Associated entities, before Other items $ 261 $ (93) $ (165)

Income before Other items $ 1,685 $ 1,100 $ 636

Other items, net $ (38) $ (54) $ (6,901)

Net Profit $ 1,647 $ 1,046 $ (6,265)

Earnings per ADR

Income before Other items $ 1.20 $ 0.83 $ 0.49

Net Profit $ 1.17 $ 0.79 $ (5.09)

Financial Position

Assets $ 51,455 $ 44,963 $ 40,293

Debt $ 8,702 $ 8,249 $ 8,709

Financial Highlights
(U.S. Dollars, in Millions except for Earnings Per ADR)

move will have no discernible
impact on our operations, in
Australia or elsewhere. We
will remain a proud and 
vital part of the Australian
media landscape with a 
listing on the Australian
Stock Exchange – now and
for generations to come. 

What will be affected, 
however, is our financial 
flexibility. By becoming a
US-domiciled company, we
believe News Corporation
would have improved access
to a larger pool of invest-
ment capital – specifically,
the US$12 trillion US capital 
market. In addition, the
Company would become eligi-
ble for inclusion in US
indices, including the S&P
500 index, which we believe
would generate billions of
dollars of increased demand
from funds that previously
have been precluded from
owning our Company’s
shares. This in turn is expect-
ed to narrow the historic 
discount that has existed
between News Corp’s voting
and non-voting shares, an
anomaly that has bedeviled
us for many years. 

There is, in short, a com-
pelling logic to this proposal,
and I urge you to give it the
strongest possible considera-
tion when you study the
detailed proposal materials. 

Another transformative
event occurred during the
year with the completion 
of our acquisition of a 34 
percent interest in Hughes
Electronics, now re-named
The DIRECTV Group. In

December 2003, after nearly
four years of exhaustive,
often arduous negotiations,
we finally realized our dream
of adding a US distribution
system to our global satellite
pay-TV platform. With our
investment in DIRECTV and
its 13 million subscribers 
now housed within the 
Fox Entertainment Group,
News Corporation can boast
nearly 30 million sub-
scribers around the world,
stretching from Rome (SKY
Italia) to Rio (Sky Brasil),
from Sydney (Foxtel) to
Seattle (DIRECTV), from
London (BSkyB) to Los
Cabos (Sky Mexico). 

By combining our industry-
leading content businesses
with the world’s single
largest and most global dis-
tribution platform, we have
compiled what I believe is 
the industry’s most formida-
ble grouping of assets, and
with it, the ability to better 
control our own destiny in an
uncertain and increasingly
consolidated global market-
place. The ability to create
our own content and distrib-
ute it through our own and
other platforms should ensure
that we are beholden to no
one but the discriminating
consumer. When we create
compelling content, it will be
seen; when we distribute qual-
ity content, we can ensure
fair compensation. And when
we want to launch new chan-
nels or services, we know we
have a national – indeed an
international – footprint, to
get us off the ground. 

In more practical, everyday
terms, it means sharing 
our most talented employees
across platforms and exploit-
ing the knowledge they have
gained at one system for the
benefit of others. And it
means leveraging our scale
and breadth to ensure that we
are paying less – and getting
more – for the products and
services we are using. 

But we didn’t just acquire
our interest in DIRECTV 
for its strategic benefits. 
We also believe it will be 
a great business with even
greater potential. Shortly
after assuming operational
control, we put to work many 
of the best practices we 
had learned from our other 

pay-TV businesses and the
results were immediate.
DIRECTV’s first full quarter
of operation saw it achieve the
highest number of net new
subscribers in the company’s
history. By the end of our 
first half year of operation,
the company had very nearly
equaled our full-year forecast
for net new subscribers. 

The new management
team at DIRECTV has
brought a new energy, a 
new focus and a culture of

excellence to a company that
had endured years of paraly-
sis as it awaited its sale. This
team has divested non-core
assets such as PanAmSat, a
transaction that when com-
pleted will reap The DIRECTV
Group more than US$2.6 bil-
lion net of taxes. It has
streamlined the operations of
Hughes Network Systems and
announced the sale of its set
top box manufacturing assets.
It has launched a new satellite
and expanded local-into-local
service and high definition
television. But most impor-
tantly, it has infused this
great company with a sense
of urgency.

Another new business that
demonstrated great potential
was our pay-TV service in
Italy: SKY Italia. Officially
launched in August, 2003,
SKY Italia has quickly
expanded to nearly 2.7 mil-
lion subscribers, well on 
its way to the three million
subscribers we forecast for
the end of this calendar year.
Monthly average revenue per
user (ARPU) – a key indica-
tor of a platform’s success –
is more than €40, reflecting 
that nearly 90 percent of
subscribers have opted for 
a premium service, while
piracy – the theft of our
satellite signal – has been
tamed. Indeed, if our current
momentum continues, we
think we are well on our way
to creating another BSkyB
in Europe’s third most pros-
perous market. The year
ended with start-up losses of
US$267 million, better than
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When we create compelling

content, it will be seen; 

when we distribute quality 

content, we can ensure 

fair compensation.
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forecast. At current growth
rates, we expect to achieve
operational breakeven in the
second half of this fiscal year. 

SKY Italia has become 
the laboratory of our pay-
TV future. Fox channels are
included on the service’s
basic tier, while Fox films are
featured on its premium tier.
FOX News Channel executives
have helped launch the SKY
Italia news channel at the
same time their FOX Sports
colleagues helped design
SKY Italia’s new studio sets.
Our own 78 percent-owned
NDS is ensuring the system’s
uncompromised conditional
access and BSkyB, the most
advanced satellite platform
in the world, is helping mod-
ernize its customer service. 

Indeed, BSkyB is the
model of a successful direct-
to-home satellite platform.
During 2004, BSkyB added
more than half a million 
subscribers while maintain-
ing its industry-low churn
rate. At the same time, it 
is experiencing higher ARPU
as more customers opt for 
premium services. Taken
together, these factors have
led to dramatically increased
associated income for News
Corp. this year, with the
expectation of even higher
returns going forward. 

With all of the expertise in
satellite distribution that
News Corp. now has at its dis-
posal, I convened a meeting
of the top executives from
each of our satellite plat-
forms in March. For three
days, we discussed the future
of satellite technology and
covered in depth how we 
can use our size to grow 
subscription bases, improve
offerings and lower costs.
That weekend meeting was 
a powerful example of how
News Corp. is able to marshal
the resources and expertise
of its component parts to 
lift the entire group, and 
I anticipate holding many
more of these meetings in
the future. 

What enables us to
embrace strategic opportu-
nities such as DIRECTV,
BSkyB and SKY Italia is 
the continued robust growth
we have achieved at our 
core assets. And once again,
these gains were evenly dis-
tributed across our key oper-
ating segments. Combined,
we are poised for great 
organic growth throughout
the Company. 

In Fiscal 2004 at our
Filmed Entertainment seg-
ment, we achieved something
few expected: another record
year of operating income. A

question I was persistently
asked this year was: Is the
momentum at the film studio
sustainable? Frankly, no one
knew for certain, given the
historic vagaries of the film
industry. Today, however, I
am pleased to report that
operating income reached 
US$886 million, besting last
year’s number by 38 percent.

Again, it was a combination
of smart film-making, better
risk management, a focus 
on profitability over market
share and an exploding home
entertainment market that
generated our success. In 
fiscal 2004 and early in fiscal
2005, Twentieth Century Fox
films had an industry record
six films in a row open 
to US$20 million-plus box
offices. Meanwhile, Day
After Tomorrow has grossed
more than US$500 million
worldwide. Worldwide home 
entertainment and pay-TV 
performances of X2: X-Men
United, Cheaper by the Dozen
and Daredevil, among others,
also contributed to our suc-
cess, as did the continued
growth in our home enter-
tainment sales of TV DVDs.
This year, on sales of such
popular shows as 24, The

Television Stations; and the
mounting success of STAR. 

FOX Broadcasting Network
again finished the year as the
number one rated network
among teens and adults aged
18-34 and a strong number
two in the coveted 18-49
demographic. And in its 
third season, American Idol
cemented its place as a cul-
tural phenomenon, finishing
the season as the number one
rated program in primetime
and increasing its ratings
nearly 10 percent. 

Despite the network’s
strong overall performance,
we suffered bad ratings in the
first half of the year, particu-
larly in the two months 
following our highly rated
broadcast of post-season
baseball. What became clear
to us was this: we could 
no longer abide the tradi-
tional September start to 
the broadcast season if we 
wanted to remain competi-
tive. Something had to
change. Beginning this past
summer, we moved to a 12
month season and the early
results have been promising
(if somewhat uneven), with
several new shows showing
great potential for their
return in November. 

Operating income at Fox
Television Stations rose 7
percent over last year. Our
duopoly strategy is clearly
working, reflected in the
record market share the sta-
tions achieved this year as
well as lower overall costs.
With nearly all of the cost
savings already realized from
our integration efforts, the
focus now is to capitalize on
the revenue opportunities
available from owning nine
duopolies in some of the

Gains were evenly 

distributed across our 

key operating segments.

We are poised for 

great organic growth 

throughout the 

Company.

886 
641

957 
851

617 
430

271
256

592
400

158 
133

(267) 
(68)

(150) 
(111)

Filmed Entertainment

Television

Cable Network Programming

Direct Broadcast Satellite Television

Magazines and Inserts

Newspapers 

Book Publishing

Other 

Operating Income by Industry Segment: 2004 versus 2003 (U.S. Dollars, in Millions) 
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� 2004  
� 2003 

Note: These financial highlights are taken from the Concise
Financial Report. 
Note: DBS segment was consolidated as of April 30, 2003
and had only two months of results in prior year

Simpsons and M*A*S*H, we
generated a significant new
revenue stream, demonstrat-
ing once again that the only
limit to our bottom line is
the limit of our creative
thinking. 

Like many of our peers,
however, we are not taking
the explosion of the DVD
market for granted. One 
of the hallmarks of our
Company’s success is our
ability to anticipate chal-
lenges early, to address them
head-on and to craft durable,
creative solutions. That is
precisely what we are doing
now with the issue of
digital piracy. If we are to
continue to reap the rewards 
from our digital content, 
we must protect ourselves
from the threat of its theft.
Peter Chernin, the Company’s
President and COO, took 
a leading role in both
Hollywood and Washington
this past year in formulat-
ing technological, legal and 
educational answers to this
vexing problem. The solu-
tions are not obvious, nor
easily implemented. But I
am pleased with the amount
of attention and creative
thought our executives have
given to the issue and I am
hopeful that, through our
work and the work of others,
a new consensus can be
forged which will ultimately
win this war. 

At our Television segment,
operating income rose US$106
million to US$957 million, 
the result of a strong overall
advertising environment,
which pushed up pricing for
our primetime schedule and
sports programming; higher
advertising revenues and
market share gains at our Fox
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largest TV markets in the
U.S. and to use our breadth to
acquire quality program-
ming at fair prices. 

STAR, our pan-Asian chan-
nels business, continued its
positive momentum, report-
ing a second consecutive 
year of solid profitability.
Earnings were up substan-
tially over last year, largely 
on the strength of rising 
subscription and advertising
revenues at our thriving
Indian business and the devel-
opment of our general enter-
tainment channel in China. 

We’ve also been very
aggressive in devising new
ways to reach advertisers 
as audiences continue to
decline at the U.S. broadcast
networks and personal video
recorders (PVRs) become
more common. The challenge
for us – and for all broadcast-
ers – is to stay ahead of these
developments: to fashion
alternatives to the 30 second
advertising spot that has 
been the industry’s lifeblood
for nearly 50 years. A team 
of executives today is hard 
at work looking at such 
alternatives as in-show prod-
uct placement and corporate
sponsorship as ways to keep
advertisers associated with
our content. At the same
time, we are constantly exam-
ining new ways to monetize
our content, as we’ve done in
launching the TV DVD mar-
ket. Like digital copyright,
this is an issue with immense
long-term implications if
ignored and we are devoting
much time and effort into
staying ahead of it.

One prominent area of the
Company that has certainly
benefited from innovative
and bold thinking is our

Cable Network Programming
segment. Fiscal 2004 operat-
ing income increased 43 
percent – the third consecu-
tive year of strong double
digit growth – with explosive
gains achieved at all three 
of our primary channels:
FOX News, FX and Fox
Sports Net. 

At FOX News, the story
was much the same as fiscal
2003, only better: ratings
supremacy matched with ris-
ing advertising revenues.
Once considered a potential
long-term drag on earnings,
the channel is now one of
our key growth drivers, par-
ticularly once its original
affiliation agreements begin
to expire in 2006 and we are
able to renegotiate carriage
rates in line with the chan-
nel’s superb performance.
FX continued to distinguish
itself with original pro-
gramming such as Nip/Tuck
and The Shield. Like FOX
News, it is poised for larger 
affiliate revenues as it
begins to renegotiate its
original agreements. And at
Fox Sports Net, higher sub-
scriber numbers and higher
affiliate rates contributed to
a double-digit revenue and
profit increase at our local
sports channels. 

We should all be proud of
the successes we achieved
across our newspaper busi-
nesses, which performed well
in highly competitive mar-
kets. The segment reported
revenue and operating profit
increases of 26 percent and 48
percent respectively, due in
part to the absence of a cover
price war at The Sun in the
U.K., but also due to higher
advertising and circulation
revenues at nearly all of our

major papers. Among some
of the more significant devel-
opments within this seg-
ment, The Times took the
bold gamble of introducing 
a compact edition, and 
the public enthusiastically
embraced it. Defying the
skeptics and traditionalists,
overall circulation for the
two papers was up following
the compact’s introduction.

The Sunday Telegraph,
Australia’s largest selling
paper, increased its margin
over its main competitor to
more than 200,000 copies,
while in Melbourne, The
Herald Sun maintained daily

sales more than 350,000 ahead
of its chief rival. And The New
York Post continued its torrid
pace, recording its eighth
straight double-digit increase
in circulation for a six-month
reporting period. It is the
fastest growing daily news-
paper in the U.S., and is
poised to soon surpass its
chief tabloid rival. 

One of the genuine high-
lights of the past year was
the worldwide newspaper

conference we convened in
Mexico this past March. 200
employees from every aspect
of our newspaper operations
came together for four days
of intensive discussion on
virtually every facet of news-
paper publishing. What made
the conference so worthwhile
was the frank exchange of
information. The opportuni-
ty to learn from one another
– to share ideas with the 
best minds in the industry
from around the globe – is
something we intend to 
pursue even more aggressively
in the coming years. 

Our other print businesses
also achieved growth and 
sustained momentum. News
America Marketing, our
coupon and in-store market-
ing business, generated a 
6 percent improvement over
last year. HarperCollins, 
led by the astonishing per-
formance of The Purpose
Driven Life, had another 
year of record profits and had
97 titles on the New York
Times bestseller list. And our
Washington-based magazine
The Weekly Standard is widely
considered to be one of the
most influential opinion
journals on the American
political scene today. 

Events such as our world-
wide newspaper conference
and the launch of SKY Italia
are good examples of the
tremendous power that can
be realized from our global
enterprise. By harnessing
the experience and practical
wisdom that comes from
operating in different envi-
ronments and confronting
different challenges, our
company has a great advan-
tage over our competitors.
The coming years will be a
time of dynamic change.
Ideas not yet dreamed of
will surely reshape the
media industry and our way
of life. These days of swift
change can be a source of
either dizzying fear or
boundless excitement. Our
tradition at News Corp. is
not only to embrace these
transformations, but to drive
them. This is not a company
that sits still or basks in the
light of past achievements.
We do not allow ourselves
the luxury of self-satisfac-
tion. There is still so much
more that we can and will
accomplish. And it is with
tremendous excitement that
we look ahead to another
year, and many more to
come, of building a media
company capable of great
things and the ability to
better the lives of all our
readers and viewers. 

Filmed Entertainment

Television

Cable Network Programming

Direct Broadcast Satellite Television

Magazines and Inserts

Newspapers 

Book Publishing

Other 

5,187 
4,486

5,027 
4,763

2,538 
2,270

979
923

3,425
2,718

1,276 
1,162

1,665
220

862
932

Revenues by Industry Segment: 2004 versus 2003  (U.S. Dollars, in Millions) 

The opportunity to learn

from one another – 

to share ideas with the

best minds in the 

industry from around 

the globe – is something

we intend to pursue 

even more aggressively 

in the coming years. 
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� 2004  
� 2003 

Note: These financial highlights are taken from the Concise
Financial Report. 
Note: DBS segment was consolidated as of April 30, 2003
and had only two months of results in prior year
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GLOBAL EDITION

Garfield
A solid performance

� � � � � Cheaper by 
the Dozen

Family Hit of the Holiday Season

FOX MAKES
WAVES
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A string of hit movies and record
home entertainment sales gave
20th Century Fox Film, News
Corporation’s 82 percent-owned
Fox Entertainment Group’s film
studio, record operating profits
for the third straight year in 
fiscal 2004.

Fox’s most successful film of
the year at the box office was
Day After Tomorrow. Following
its May 2004 release, the film
was a hit in North America and
number one in many interna-

tional territories. Its outstanding
performance continued into fis-
cal 2005 and the film has earned
more than US$500 million at the
worldwide box office.

Day After Tomorrow was the
biggest in a string of successful
films for Fox in fiscal 2004, start-
ing with League of Extraordinary
Gentlemen in the first quarter,
and continuing through Oscar-
winner Master and Commander;
holiday-season comedy Cheaper
by the Dozen; April’s action

movie Man on Fire; and June’s
goofball comedies Dodgeball
and Garfield.

Master and Commander,
released in November 2003,
received tremendous critical
acclaim, garnering 10 Academy
Award nominations. It was
soon followed by the surprise
family hit of the holiday season,
Cheaper by the Dozen.

Man on Fire opened at num-
ber one at the box office and 
was followed two months later

21st Century Records For 20th Century Fox

TALE OF THE TAPE: DVD AND VIDEO SALES SOAR Television Studios: Critical
Acclaim and High Ratings
The Company’s main TV 
production studio, 20th Century
Fox Television (TCFTV), has
received network orders for 21
series – including 12 returning
and nine new series – for the
upcoming TV season.

FOX ordered 15 series, CBS
ordered three, ABC ordered
two and the WB ordered one.

TCFTV series were hits
among both viewers and critics,
with the studio netting a string of
award nominations. The studio
received 25 Emmy nominations,
including eight for 24, seven 
for Arrested Development and
four for The Practice. Arrested
Development also received five
Television Critics Association
Awards nominations – the most
of any show – and won two.

In primetime animation,
the studio again demonstrated
its established expertise when
Family Guy became the number
one-selling TV title on DVD and
was put back into production for
FOX and The Cartoon Network.

Meanwhile, Fox Television
Studios (FTS) produced tele-
movie Redemption, the highest-
rated movie of the year to air
on Fox’s general entertainment
channel, FX.

Malcolm in the Middle, pro-
duced by Fox Entertainment
Group’s 50 percent-owned
Regency Television, was sold
into syndication, and The Bernie
Mac Show, jointly produced by
Regency Television and TCFTV,
received critical acclaim and
two prestigious Humanitas
Award nominations.

Armed with a large library of
Fox movies and television
series, the Company’s home
entertainment division sold
more DVDs and videos than
ever before.

In the United States, five
titles – X2: X-Men United,
Cheaper by the Dozen, Master
and Commander, Daredevil
and League of Extraordinary
Gentlemen – reached sales of
more than US$70 million.

Illustrating the strength of the
home entertainment market as
an important revenue stream,
the U.S. video release of 
Phone Booth and League of
Extraordinary Gentlemen both
beat their U.S. box office returns.

But it wasn’t just the
Company’s film titles that
attracted consumer interest.
Sales of Fox-produced televi-
sion series on video were also
strong. Fox had three of the top
five TV DVD titles in fiscal
2004: the third season of The
Simpsons; volume one of Family
Guy and volume two of Family
Guy. In fact, such was the 
success of the Family Guy 

video releases that the series –
currently in hiatus – will be
brought back to broadcast 
television next season. Other
strong performances from TV
series during the year included
Buffy the Vampire Slayer and 24.

As well as new releases, hit
movies released on video in 
previous years – known as cat-
alog titles – continued to make
significant contributions. The
high-performing catalog titles
in fiscal 2004 included Ice 
Age, Super Troopers, X-Men,
Office Space, Cast Away and
Unfaithful.

In the U.S., Fox’s Home
Entertainment division was
named Wal-Mart Supplier of
the Year for 2003, and home
electronics retailer Best Buy
awarded Fox its Bravo Award 
as best vendor for 2004, an
indication of the incredible
sales success the Company has
had in home entertainment.

In May 2004, Fox Home
Entertainment acquired the
rights to distribute on VHS and
DVD one of the year’s biggest
box office hits, The Passion of
the Christ, which was released
on August 31.

by an outstanding opening for
Garfield. A week later, the num-
ber one opening for Dodgeball
gave Fox its fourth straight
US$20 million-plus opening
weekend at the box office.
Dodgeball has since gone on to
gross more than US$100 million
in the U.S. Soon after the end 
of the fiscal year, I, Robot and
Alien vs. Predator both opened at
number one, giving Fox its fifth
and sixth consecutive movie
openings above US$20 million.
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TELEVISION WORLD
EXCLUSIVE

IDOLIZED
FOX the Idol

of Young
Adults and

Teens

Most competitive season in FOX’s 18-year history. See next page for details
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The FOX network finished the
2003-2004 broadcast season in
the most competitive position in
its 18-year history. FOX beat two
of the oldest U.S. networks – ABC
and CBS – and was edged out of
first place by NBC by just one-
tenth of a ratings point in the key
18 to 49 age group.

But among teenagers and
those aged 18 to 34 – demo-
graphics highly coveted by adver-
tisers – FOX was a clear number
one. In fact, among teens, FOX’s
ratings were 71 percent higher
than its nearest competitor, the
widest margin in the history of
electronic ratings measurement.

In its third hit season, American
Idol ended the television season
as the number one program on

primetime television. Compared to
its phenomenal second-season
performance, American Idol’s rat-
ings were up 10 percent among
18 to 49 year olds and 16 percent
in total viewers, confirming the
show’s status as a cultural phe-
nomenon in the U.S.

The American Idol finale deliv-
ered FOX’s third-highest rated
night of entertainment program-
ming ever among 18 to 49 year
olds and total viewers, behind
only last year’s Joe Millionaire
finale and last year’s American
Idol finale.

In a year when critics bemoaned
the death of comedy, FOX’s new
comedy Arrested Development was
the most critically lauded freshman
series of the season. Meanwhile,
The O.C. was the number one new
scripted series of the television
season in both adult 18 to 34 and
teen demographics.

The FOX network’s entertain-
ment slate was complemented 
by the impressive results for 
FOX Sports programming in the
2003-2004 season. For seven
consecutive years, FOX Sports has
been the highest-rated sports 
network in television.

This past season, FOX Sports
posted improved ratings in all
three of its major sports proper-
ties. NFC football on FOX out-rated
CBS’s AFC package by 8 percent
and, for the second year in a 
row, FOX’s national NFL games
out-delivered ABC’s Monday Night
Football by 12 percent. NASCAR
on FOX continued to be the sec-
ond highest-rated regular season
sport on television, with only 
NFL programming rating higher.
FOX’s NASCAR regular season rat-
ings more than doubled ABC’s
NBA regular season ratings, the
biggest margin ever between the
two sports.

Most impressive was the 2003
performance of the Major League
Baseball postseason on FOX,
highlighted by both the American
League and National League
Championship Series going a 
full seven games. FOX’s 24 
post-season MLB broadcasts
averaged a 28 percent increase 
in ratings over the previous sea-
son, and were the highest-rated
MLB post-season on any network
since 1995.

From previous page

TELEVISION
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Local Markets Stay Tuned For More FOX
Increased efficiency and increased market share characterized yet
another record year for Fox Television Stations, Fox Entertainment
Group’s 35 owned-and-operated broadcast stations in the United States.

The Company’s strategy of owning duopolies – two stations in a single
large market – has led to major improvements in the operations and
results of the stations around the U.S. News Corporation has duopoly
stations in nine of the top 20 markets in the U.S., including the top
three markets of New York, Los Angeles and Chicago. 

By the end of fiscal 2004, the integration of the duopoly stations
was virtually complete. 

The New York duopoly of WNYW and WWOR made market share
gains against their local competitors. In Los Angeles, KTTV and KCOP
saw ratings success. By the end of the fiscal year, KTTV was producing

the top-rated morning and evening newscasts, as well as winning the
competitive early-fringe and prime-access time slots. After moving to 
a more competitive time period, KCOP’s news began beating two of 
the other established late newscasts and quadrupled its audience
among the coveted younger demographics. And in Chicago, WFLD 
was the number one billing station in the market for the first time in 
the station’s history.

Around the rest of the country, Fox’s stations excelled not only 
in ratings and financial performance, but also in their focus on their 
communities. In fiscal 2004, the stations as a group added 57 hours
of news to each week’s programming. The increase in news coverage
to an already strong news slate brought the total local news broad-
casts across the 35 stations to 846 hours each week.
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WNYW New York, NY
WWOR New York, NY
KTTV Los Angeles, CA
KCOP Los Angeles, CA
WFLD Chicago, IL
WPWR Chicago, IL
WTXF Philadelphia, PA
KDFW Dallas, TX
KDFI Dallas, TX

WFXT Boston, MA
WTTG Washington DC
WDCA Washington DC
WAGA Atlanta, GA
WJBK Detroit, MI
KRIV Houston, TX
KTXH Houston, TX
KMSP Minneapolis, MN
WFTC Minneapolis, MN

WTVT Tampa Bay, FL
KSAZ Phoenix, AZ
KUTP Phoenix, AZ
WJW Cleveland, OH
KDVR Denver, CO
WRBW Orlando, FL
WOFL Orlando, FL
KTVI St. Louis, MO
WDAF Kansas City, MO

WITI Milwaukee, WI
KSTU Salt Lake City, UT
WBRC Birmingham, AL
WHBQ Memphis, TN
WGHP Greensboro, NC
KTBC Austin, TX
WUTB Baltimore, MD
WOGX Gainesville, FL

FOX TELEVISION STATIONS

TELEVISION
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STAR performer in Asia
News Corporation’s pan-Asian 
television platform, STAR, recorded
its second full year of operational
profitability in fiscal 2004 as its
growth continued.

The breadth and depth of
STAR’s businesses expanded dur-
ing the year, with new distribution
deals in a number of key markets
– including Hong Kong and
Singapore – and with the addition
of several new channels. The total
number of channels broadcast on
the network increased to 47.

In India, STAR’s leadership
position among cable channels
was undisputed. Star Plus, the
flagship Hindi enter tainment
channel, reigned as the number
one cable channel – a position 
it has held since July 2000. 
The channel accounted for
approximately 80 of the top 100
programs each week in cable
homes across the Hindi markets.

In June, STAR launched Star
Utsav, a new Hindi entertainment
channel featuring some of the

best programming previously
broadcast on Star Plus. In the
first two weeks after launch, the
channel was seen by almost 17
million people.

STAR also made progress in
the direct-to-home (DTH) market-
place in India. During fiscal 2004,
it formed a joint venture with the
Tata Group for the proposed
launch of a DTH television plat-
form in India. 

In China, Xing Kong Wei Shi, the
flagship Mandarin entertainment
channel, was the number one
regional channel in Guangzhou
province. Another record was set
by Channel [V] as the 10th [V]
Chinese Music Awards drew an
audience of 226 million with syndi-
cation to other networks in China
as well.

Other markets, including
Taiwan, the Middle East, South
East Asia and Hong Kong, 
also continued to grow and con-
tribute to the overall profitability
of the group. 
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bTV Big in Bulgaria
Launched in 2000 as Bulgaria’s first national private television station,
bTV was an instant success. Since then, its mix of local and foreign
programming has helped it achieve a stunning 40 percent share of the
audience.

bTV’s main and late evening news have become the most popular
newscasts in Bulgaria, while This Morning beats its competition with a
50 percent share. bTV also maintained high ratings in entertainment
shows with some of the most watched programs in Bulgaria. The
recently launched game show The Exam was the most watched game
show in the nation with a 52 percent audience share.

TELEVISION
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The extraordinary growth 
of News Corporation’s Cable
Network Programming seg-
ment continued in fiscal 2004
as more viewers and advertis-
ers recognized the unique
quality of the Company’s
various cable and satellite
channels.

Such is the fame of News
Corporation’s cable brands –
including FOX News, FX, Fox
Sports Net and National
Geographic Channel – that it
is easy to forget that none of
these networks existed just a
decade ago. Today, they are
leaders among news, sports
and entertainment offerings
on cable and satellite sys-
tems across the United
States.

FOX News Channel
had a staggering 10 of
the 11 top shows in the
hyper-competitive 24-
hour cable news arena;

Cable networks connect in ’04
FX had basic cable’s number-
one ranked new original
series with the acclaimed
Nip/Tuck; and Fox Sports 
Net was nominated for five
Sports Emmy Awards.

FOX News and FX now
have full distribution across
the U.S., reaching 84 million
cable and satellite homes.
Fox Sports Net reaches more
than 80 million subscribers,
and National Geographic
remains one of the fastest
growing networks on pay 
television.

The cable group has also
expanded its channel line-up
into areas of natural pro-
gramming strength with the 
automotive-sports focused
SPEED Channel, extreme
sports channel FUEL, Fox
Sports en Espanol and Fox
Sports World. Each of these
channels enjoyed subscriber
growth in 2004.

FOX News: We Report, More People Decide to Watch

News, Sports and
Entertainment

There was nothing fair and
balanced about the competi-
tion between 24-hour cable
news networks in the U.S. in
fiscal 2004. FOX News Channel
– the one-time underdog – fin-
ished the year number one for
the 30th straight month. FOX
News beat its competitors 
in both primetime and on a 
24-hour basis in total viewers,
and consistently generated
ratings higher than the com-
bined audiences of its two
major competitors.

FOX News dominated the
ratings to such an extent
that it had 10 of the top 11
cable news shows. The top
three positions went to The

O’Reilly Factor, Hannity &
Colmes and The Fox Report
with Shepard Smith. And in
May 2004, Special Report with
Brit Hume surpassed CNN’s
Larry King Live to claim the
number four spot with more
than one million viewers.

Not only did the news
network’s audience grow in
the U.S., but also overseas.
FOX News secured new
international distribution
deals in fiscal 2004 with sev-
eral cable systems overseas,
including in New Zealand,
Taiwan, Brazil and Italy.
The deals mean FOX News’
programming is now seen in
52 countries.

Cable News Market Share
Total Day and Prime % of Persons 2+ Watching Cable News Channels

CNN
31%

FNC
54%

TOTAL DAY

MSNBC
15%

CNN
32%

FNC
55%

MSNBC
13%

PRIME

Nip/Tuck
The only new series on television 
to earn a Golden Globe nomination 
for Best Drama Series last year
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Cable Network Programming
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Viewers and Critics Choose Fox Sports

Fox Sports Net received five Sports Emmy Award nominations,
three for the critically acclaimed two-hour special Beyond the Glory:
Mike Tyson. The networks also enjoyed a 9 percent increase in
local ratings for National Basketball Association games.

To enhance the viewing experience for its 80 million-plus 
subscribers, Fox Sports Net began producing local events in 
high-definition, making the group the largest supplier of local 
high-definition programming in the U.S.

In May 2004, Fox Sports Net announced a trio of dedicated 
college sports networks – Fox College Sports – which will debut
with the start of the college football season in the U.S.

More Viewers Feel The Need For SPEED

Ratings at SPEED Channel increased more than 23 percent since
February 2004 when SPEED unveiled an expanded original 
program line-up including auto enthusiast series Chop, Cut,
Rebuild; Sportscar Revolution and Autorotica. SPEED increased
its distribution to reach 62 million homes during the year.

FUEL For Fans

FUEL, an extreme sports network launched in July 2003, 
significantly expanded its U.S. subscribers in its first year. 
The channel expanded internationally with a March 2004 launch
on News Corporation’s 25 percent-owned FOXTEL in Australia,
and planned launch in the UK and Europe.

National Geographic Channel

Since January 2004, primetime audiences at Fox Entertainment
Group’s 67 percent-owned National Geographic Channel have
climbed every month, culminating in the network’s highest-rated
program ever – Return to Titanic – in June 2004.

In December 2003, the Channel entered into a new distribution
agreement with a major cable system, giving it contracts with each
of the top 10 cable distributors serving the U.S. By the end of 
fiscal 2004, National Geographic reached 50 million homes.

Cable Network Programming Briefs

Cable Network Programming
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FX generated the highest
primetime ratings in its 10-
year history during fiscal
2004, posting a 14 percent gain
in total viewers and a 15 per-
cent increase among the tar-
get audience of adults 18 to 49.

FX’s ratings success was
largely fueled by the perform-
ance of its original series. FX
has set a new standard for
quality original series in
advertiser-supported cable
television. In July 2003, the
network launched its second
original drama series,
Nip/Tuck, which was basic
cable’s number-one ranked
new original series. Of all

original series on cable in cal-
endar 2003, Nip/Tuck’s ratings
among adults 18 to 49 were
equaled only by FX’s Emmy
and Golden Globe Award-win-
ning drama series, The Shield.

Nip/Tuck was the only new
series on television to earn a
Golden Globe nomination for
Best Drama Series last year,
making FX the only basic
cable network to have received
best series Golden Globe 
nominations for two differ-
ent shows. Nip/Tuck’s Joely
Richardson also became the
first actress from a basic cable
series to earn a Golden Globe
nomination for Best Actress.

Special FX Has Banner Year
FX’s strong primetime

movie schedule also boosted
the network with better
titles, as did the success 
of its weekly DVD on TV
format, an enhancement
that has helped generate
added value for its acquired
films.

Soon after the end of fiscal
2004, FX launched a new 
original series, Rescue Me,
starring Denis Leary. The
premiere of Rescue Me was
seen by almost 4.1 million
viewers and was the second
highest rated series premiere
in the network’s history.
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Direct Broadcast 

Satellite Television
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BRAVO, SKY ITALIA

EXCLUSIVE GUIDE TO NEW TECHNOLOGY

Viewers Tune In To DIRECTV 
New management sets strategy focused
on making DIRECTV’s satellite television
operations the world’s best viewing 
experience.

Report, next page

News Corporation’s 80 per-
cent-owned direct-to-home
satellite broadcaster, SKY
Italia, launched early in 
fiscal 2004 and sparked a rush
by consumers to get the best
pay-TV packages ever offered
in Italy.

SKY Italia was formed
from the April 2003 merger of
Stream and Telepiu, the for-
mer competitors in the
Italian pay-TV market, and,
after a massive restructuring,
its new programming slate
and marketing campaign
were launched just three
months later.

Already the significant
losses News Corporation
experienced from its 50 
percent ownership of Stream
have been dramatically
reduced. SKY Italia finished
the year with nearly 2.7 

million subscribers, an addi-
tion of more than one million.

With the closure in late
2003 of Telepiu’s costly and
low capacity analog network,
SKY’s entire subscriber base
is now digital. Since SKY
Italia’s launch, more than 
95 percent of subscribers 
have purchased premium pro-
gramming packages, pushing
average subscription revenues
per residential subscriber 
to the equivalent of US$605 
a year. 

SKY Italia acted decisively
to eliminate the threat of
piracy, announcing in May
2004 that by December it
would swap-out the old
Telepiu encryption system
to utilize the highly effec-
tive technology of News
Corporation’s 78 percent-
owned subsidiary, NDS.

25
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Direct Broadcast Satellite Television
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In December 2003, News
Corporation completed its
acquisition of a 34 percent
stake in Hughes Electronics,
since renamed The DIRECTV
Group.

The acquisition was com-
pleted in December 2003 and
DIRECTV started calendar
2004 with a new management
team and a renewed focus on
rapidly growing subscriber
numbers. By the end of June
2004, DIRECTV had more
than 13 million customers,
making it the largest digital
multi-channel television
service in the U.S.

DIRECTV’s new manage-
ment set a strategy of
concentrating on the satel-
lite television operations,
selling several other assets
including an 80 percent
stake in PanAmSat in a
transaction that will reap
DIRECTV US$2.6 billion net
of taxes, the set-top box

Viewers Tune In To DIRECTV 

BSkyB expanded its direct-to-home subscriber base by
7.4 percent to 7.4 million during fiscal 2004 as it continued
to enhance its offerings to meet the strong demand for
pay-TV in the U.K. and Ireland.

By the end of June, the total number of subscribers –
which includes satellite, cable and digital terrestrial
customers – rose by 2.1 million to 14.3 million. Customer
loyalty to Sky was strong, with fewer than 10 percent of
customers not renewing their Sky contracts.

BSkyB, which is 35 percent-owned by News Corporation,
reported further improvement in its financial perform-
ance during the year, delivering strong profit growth at all
levels. BSkyB also resumed paying dividends to its share-
holders after a several-year hiatus during its conversion
from an analog to a digital platform.

Sky high in U.K.

CALL 1-800-DIRECTV OR VISIT DIRECTV.com

Better Customer Service
Ranked #1 in customer satisfaction 
3 straight years among cable and 
satellite TV subscribers nationwide.*

Better Picture Quality
Every channel on DIRECTV® service comes
to you in 100% digital-quality picture and
sound. Surprisingly, even with Digital Cable,
not every channel is actually digital.

*The American Customer Satisfaction Index, University of Michigan Business School (Q2 2004).
©2004 DIRECTV, Inc. DIRECTV and the Cyclone Design are registered trademarks of DIRECTV, Inc.

manufacturing assets of
Hughes Network Systems for
US$250 million and the com-
pany’s approximately 55-per-
cent stake in Hughes Software
Systems for US$226 million.

The successful launch in
May of the DIRECTV 7S
satellite significantly expand-
ed the platform’s channel
capacity to 1,200 channels.
With the extra channel
capacity, DIRECTV has also
committed to making local
television stations available
to subscribers in a minimum
of 130 local markets – repre-
senting 92 percent of U.S.
television households – by
the end of calendar 2004.

DIRECTV is a leading
provider of advanced services
such as high-definition pro-
gramming and digital video
recorders, both of which are
strong incentives to potential
subscribers and crucial to
keeping existing customers.

h_short pages  9/10/04  10:30 AM  Page 10







THROUGHOUT Australia,
News Limited newspapers
again proved their connec-
tion with their communities
in fiscal 2004 by beating both
print and electronic com-
petitors with the nation’s
best news coverage.

News Limited staff won
all seven print media awards
at the 2003 Walkley Awards
and also won the prestigious
Graham Perkin Award. The
long list of awards was
reflected in the performances
of the national, capital city
and regional newspapers.

In Sydney, The Sunday
Telegraph, Australia’s
biggest-selling newspaper,
increased its margin over its
competitor to more than
200,000 copies per week. The
Company’s daily paper in

Upbeat News 
Down Under

Newspapers
Improvements 
welcomed by 

both readers and 
advertisers
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WAUGH
DECLARES

Steve Waugh yesterday delivered the news no cricket fan wantedto hear. This is his last summerof Test cricket

Time to go

Thursday, November 27, 2003

$1*
Including GST  AM

•EXCLUSIVE

award-winning reporters, photographers and artists

AMAZING PICTURES THE FOREFRONT OF NEWSPAPER INNOVATION

THE ULTIMATE
SOURCE

News, sports, business
and travel information

Continued next page 
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previous year. The Courier-
Mail was named Pacific
Area Newspaper Publishers
Association Newspaper of
the Year in recognition of the
paper’s revitalization.

Further north, The
Townsville Bulletin increased
cover prices and still boosted
circulation. Circulation at
The Cairns Post rose for the
sixth consecutive audit peri-
od, while the classified mar-
ket was particularly strong.
South of Brisbane, the Gold
Coast Bulletin was a finalist
in five categories in the 2004
International Newspaper
Marketing Awards.

In Perth, the Sunday
Times managed its highest
ever circulation and was the
only major paper in Western
Australia to record growth
in 2004.

In Adelaide, several bold
editorial initiatives were
introduced, including the
entertainment guide The
Ticket, a fashion and lifestyle
section, You, and a TV liftout
7 days in The Advertiser
and Home magazine in the
Sunday Mail. 

Interstate and interna-
tional interest in Tasmanian
real estate created a 
boom advertising market,
while publishing initia-
tives to mark Tasmania’s
Bicentenary underpinned
strong circulation gains 
at The Mercury. The 
Sunday Tasmanian under-
went substantial change in
a relaunch.

Meanwhile, the introduc-
tion of several new sections
in the redesigned Northern
Territory News, as well as
increased local news, sports
and features in the Sunday
Territorian, lifted reader-
ship by 6 percent.

Upbeat News Down Under
From Previous Page

Newspapers
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Sydney, The Daily Telegraph,
experienced strong growth
across display and classified
advertising sectors while
remaining well ahead of its
competitor in circulation
sales.

National broadsheet The
Australian made significant
changes to key sections,
improvements welcomed by
both readers and advertis-
ers. The Weekend Australian
introduced a new Travel 
and Indulgence section and
transformed The Weekend
Australian Magazine.

In Melbourne, the Herald
Sun remained Australia’s
largest-selling daily newspa-
per and maintained daily
sales more than 350,000 ahead

of its daily rival. Meanwhile,
the Sunday Herald Sun was
Australia’s fastest growing
newspaper and has recorded
circulation growth for the
past eight audit periods.
Also in Melbourne, MX, a
free commuter newspaper at
the forefront of a worldwide
trend, continued to show
impressive growth.

News Corporation’s 42
percent-owned Queensland
Newspapers showed ongoing
growth in the fastest-grow-
ing newspaper markets 
in Australia. The Sunday
Mail, Australia’s second
biggest-selling newspaper,
topped 1.5 million readers
for the first time ever, an
increase of 70,000 over the

News Limited journalists,

photographers and artists

won all seven print media

awards at the 2003

Walkley Awards.
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first multimedia newspaper section The Month, ensured
that the brand continued to attract, inspire and influence
younger readers. The paper was also the only Sunday broad-
sheet to increase total advertising volumes significantly
year-on-year. 

The U.K.’s biggest-selling daily newspaper, The Sun,
increased the circulation gap over its nearest competitor
and had more readers than all the other U.K. popular
tabloids combined. Record advertising levels at The Sun
made 2004 one of the most successful years in the paper’s
history. The Sun achieved record weeks across all display
and classified advertising categories. 

The best selling Sunday newspaper in the U.K., News of
the World, slightly increased its already-impressive market
share to record its highest-ever gap over the combined sales
of its two closest rivals. With 9.5 million readers, the News
of the World has the most young readers and the most loyal
readership in its market. It also achieved an increase in
advertising revenues.

Newspapers
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COMPETING in the most cutthroat newspaper market in
the world, News International titles again displayed the
quality that has made them world famous.

Readers lauded new innovations and improvements to
the group’s papers, while critics lavished the U.K.’s top
awards – including Reporter of the Year, Interviewer 
of the Year, Front Page of the Year and Sports Writer of
the Year – on staff from News International’s major 
mastheads.

At the forefront of newspaper innovation, the daily
broadsheet The Times introduced its compact edition in
November 2003, leading to increased circulation of almost 
5 percent. In addition, total advertising volume at the 
paper increased year-on-year by more than at any other
broadsheet daily newspaper in the U.K.

The Sunday Times continued to exert its authority over
the Sunday broadsheet market, increasing its circulation
market share from 49.2 percent to 49.8 percent.  Fiscal 2004
initiatives, including the groundbreaking launch of the

More black ink at U.K. papers 
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Newspapers
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The New York Post’s phenom-
enal growth continued in
fiscal 2004. The Audit Bureau
of Circulation reported
that for the six-month peri-
od ending on March 31, 2004
average daily circulation
was up 9.3 percent to
678,012. The Post continued
as the seventh largest paper

in the U.S. and is now with-
in 70,000 sales of its main
competitor.

In addition to the out-
standing journalism and
unsurpassed color produc-
tion quality, the circulation
success was attributed to
new sections like NYP Tempo,
which reports monthly on

the rhythm of Latin New
York and has introduced The
Post to a new and growing
community of readers and
advertisers. 

The Post successfully
partnered twice with the
New York Yankees in fiscal
2004. Readers flocked to buy
the paper in October 2003 

for The Yankees Century – a
10-part glossy magazine
tribute to the team’s 100th
anniversary – and in April
2004 for the New York Yankees
2004 Medallion Collection,
featuring high-quality col-
lectable coins with color
photos of the team’s top
players.

BIG RISES POSTED

TSL Education, the educa-
tion publishing division 
of News International,
achieved record operating
profits in fiscal 2004.

The company’s main
title, The Times Educational
Supplement, which leads the
schools recruitment market
in the U.K., achieved record
pagination for a tabloid of
788 pages in April. The Times
Higher Education Supplement
also had a record year for
operating profits.

TSL Education made 
significant progress in fiscal
2004 towards building the
group’s already-profitable
education exhibitions busi-
ness to complement its three
main titles for teachers.

Class Act at
TSL Education
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TV Guide Extends 
Its Famous Brand
Building on the decades-long suc-
cess of TV Guide magazine, News
Corporation’s 41 percent-owned
Gemstar-TV Guide International
had a strong rebuilding year in 
fiscal 2004.

TV Guide magazine maintained
its market-leading circulation of 9
million, reaching an estimated 28
million readers every week, while
adding marquee advertisers.
Meanwhile, TVGuide.com debuted
a redesigned site and doubled its
daily traffic, in the process becom-
ing the largest source of new
direct-to-publisher subscriptions
for the magazine.

TV Guide Channel added
more than 18 million subscribers
in the final half of the fiscal year
with launches on DIRECTV,
EchoStar and 44 new cable sys-
tems, making it available in
almost 80 million homes. As well,
TV Guide Interactive, the most
widely deployed cable interactive
program guide, increased distribu-
tion to more than 11 million digital
cable households.  

TV Guide also has the leading
interactive program guide for 
the North American consumer
electronics market, TV Guide On
Screen. In the past year, the divi-
sion signed more than a dozen
new long-term license deals with
top consumer electronics manu-
facturers and is now available in
more than 11 million homes.

HUNDREDS of millions of con-
sumers in the U.S. and around the
world used News America
Marketing's advertising and pro-
motional products to save money
on household products in fiscal
2004, providing an important
sales boost for packaged goods
manufacturers and retailers.

News America Marketing's
product portfolio, marketed under
the SmartSource brand name,
consists of the first branded 
free-standing insert, SmartSource
Magazine, as well as various in-
store advertising and promotional
products, merchandising services,

Smart Consumers Use SmartSource
database marketing tools and
online promotions.

In fiscal 2004, SmartSource
Magazine, the most widely circu-
lated newspaper insert in the U.S.,
reached 68 million households 
via a network of more than 1,100
newspapers and improved its
packaged goods market share to
63 percent, up from 55 percent the
previous year.

At-shelf advertising in super-
markets across the U.S. drove
incremental sales to record 
levels in fiscal 2004, fueled 
by the introduction of five 
new product enhancements.

MAGAZINES & INSERTS

donna hay and INSIDEout
donna hay and INSIDEout magazines
enjoyed record readership last year. 
donna hay was the fastest growing food
magazine in Australia with 37 percent
readership growth.

The Weekly Standard
The Weekly Standard continued to be 
the most talked-about political magazine 
in the United States and had resurgent 
advertising sales and record circulation. 

Meanwhile, SmartSource Price
Pop Guaranteed, News America
Marketing's at-shelf price-com-
munication tool, expanded its 
network to more than 8,000
retailers and became a key 
promotional pricing tool for con-
sumer packaged goods clients.

News America Marketing
International also provides 
consumer-marketing services 
in Canada, Australia and 
New Zealand, in addition to a 
network of advertising and 
promotional partners in Asia,
Europe, Latin America and the 
Pacific Rim.

N E W S  C O R P O R A T I O N A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 4

h_short pages  9/10/04  11:42 AM  Page 15



38

HarperCollins achieved anoth-
er strong year of sales and
profits in fiscal 2004, buoyed
by an impressive list of
bestsellers that was topped by
Rick Warren’s blockbuster
The Purpose Driven Life.

The Purpose Driven Life was
the number-one selling non-
fiction book in the U.S. in 2003,
with more than 17 million
copies sold since its release 
in October 2002. The title 
had been on The New York 
Times hardcover advice best-
seller list for 74 consecutive
weeks by June 30. The 
Purpose Driven Life, published
by HarperCollins’ religious 
and spiritual book imprint,
Zondervan, also picked up the
prestigious Christian Book of
the Year honor for 2003 and 2004.

BOOK PUBLISHING

In the year to June 30,
HarperCollins had 97 books on
The New York Times bestseller
list including nine titles 
that reached number one.
HarperCollins had 53 titles on
the Sunday Times bestseller
list in the UK, with five books
reaching number one.

HarperCollins Children’s
Books also topped the list of
children’s book publishers 
on The New York Times best-
seller list. A total of 32
HarperCollins titles made the
list, thanks in large part to
the continuing success of
Lemony Snicket’s A Series of
Unfortunate Events. By June
30, the 10 Snicket titles had
sold 22 million copies world-
wide, with publishing licenses
in 39 languages.

For the fourth consecutive
year, Zondervan produced the
world’s best-selling Bible, the
NIV Study Bible. The NIV Study
Bible has been on the Bible
bestseller list since its 1985
release. Five of the top six
best-selling Bibles in 2003 
were Zondervan Bibles.

Zondervan swept the
Christian booksellers awards

at its annual convention. Its
three gold and 18 silver
medallions were more than
any other publisher.

For the second time in
three years, HarperCollins
Canada won the 2004 Canadian
Booksellers Association Libris
Award for Publisher of the
Year, and also won the Editor
of the Year award. 

PULITZER FOR AMISTAD

Edward P. Jones, author of The Known World – published by HarperCollins’
African American imprint, Amistad – was awarded the Pulitzer Prize for
Fiction. 

ONE MILLION COPIES OF 100 YEARS

Gabriel Garcia Marquez’ 100 Years of Solitude sold more than one million
copies in the past year – 34 years after it was first published – when it was
selected by Oprah Winfrey for her book club.

ON TOP DOWN UNDER
HarperCollins Australia/New Zealand ended the year with a host of number
ones:  the number one publisher in Australia; publisher of the number one
cookery books (Donna Hay’s Modern Cooking 2), the number one fiction
title of the year (The Bride Stripped Bare by Anonymous), the number one
sports book (Steve Waugh’s Never Say Die), and the number one current
affairs title (World From Islam by George Negus).

HARPERCOLLINS PUBLISHERS

SOLID PERFORMANCES
INSIDE TODAY An impressive list of bestsellers

N E W S  C O R P O R A T I O N A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 4

HarperCollins General Books Group continued its strategy of
signing some of the biggest names in news, business, sports and
entertainment. HarperCollins’ imprint ReganBooks secured
former Commander of U.S. Forces in the Persian Gulf, General
Tommy Franks, to write his autobiography, which was released
in August. HarperCollins has also signed renowned former
General Electric Chairman and CEO Jack Welch and his wife,
former Harvard Business Review editor Suzy Welch, to write 
a business how-to book.

In September 2003, HarperCollins published My Side by soccer
superstar David Beckham (called Beckham: Both Feet on the
Ground in the U.S.). The book proved to be nothing short of a
publishing phenomenon in the U.K., where it was launched in 
a blaze of publicity. It quickly became the fastest-selling non-
fiction book of all time in the U.K., selling 86,000 copies in the
first two days, and topped the Sunday Times bestseller list for
seven weeks. By June 30, it had sold more than a million copies
in hardcover and was recognized with a special award at the
British Book Awards in March.

HARPERCOLLINS NEWS BRIEFS
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With its headquar ters in
Moscow, the News Outdoor
Group is now the leading outdoor
advertising company focused on
emerging European nations and
Russia.

In addition to more than
21,000 billboards located
across Russia, Poland, Romania,
Hungary and the Czech Republic,
the company owns advertising

faces in shopping malls, airports
and retail stores, and maintains
a large network of street furni-
ture products and premium 
outdoor installations.

The group operates sub-
sidiaries that are among the top
three outdoor contractors in
Romania, Poland and the Czech
Republic, and the market leader
in Russia.

News Corporation’s Sky Radio is the market-leading popular-
music radio station in the Netherlands. In September 2003, Sky
Radio Group, which also has a majority stake in the Dutch
Classic FM radio station, launched RadioVeronica in the
Netherlands, reviving an iconic 1960s radio brand.

Two months later, Sky Radio Denmark was launched as that
country’s first and only national commercial FM radio station and
had an audience share of 6.2 percent by the end of fiscal 2004. 

During the year, the Sky Radio operation in Hessen,
Germany, acquired a further seven FM licenses, bringing its
total to 18.

Signs of Growth in Russia

NDS, a leading supplier of digital
pay-TV systems and software,
dramatically increased the distri-
bution of its conditional access
system in fiscal 2004. NDS has
41 million active subscribers
worldwide.

NDS, which is 78 percent-
owned by News Corporation, is
one of the world’s leading com-
panies protecting cable and
satellite television systems from

Other
NDS KEEPS
PIRATES
AT BAY

N E W S  C O R P O R A T I O N A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 4

signal theft by digital pirates.
The company protects revenues
of more than US$20 billion at
pay-TV operations around the
world.

In fiscal 2004, NDS acquired
the Mediahighway middleware
technology, which gives NDS a
significant share of the burgeon-
ing market for middleware, the
software that operates set-top
boxes in pay-TV systems.

Sky Radio hits airwaves
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) oversees the business of The News Corporation Limited (the “Company”; the

Company and its controlled entities are referred to as the “Group”) and is responsible for corporate governance of the

Group. The Board establishes broad corporate policies, sets the strategic direction for the Group and oversees management

with a focus on enhancing the interests of shareholders.

Directors are classified as either Executive or Non-executive Directors, the former being those Directors engaged in full

time employment by the Group. The Board currently comprises six Executive Directors, including the Chairman, and

Chase Carey, the Chief Executive of the DIRECTV Group, Inc., an associated company, and nine Non-executive Directors.

Details of the members of the Board, their experience, qualifications and term in office are set out on pages 52 to 54 of the

Directors’ Report. The Board has determined that eight of the fifteen Directors are independent in accordance with the

New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) Listing Standards.

Various information reports are sent to the Board in order to keep them informed of the Group’s businesses. Directors also

receive operating and financial reports and access to senior management at Board and Committee meetings. The Board

holds regular meetings six times each year and special meetings when necessary. In addition, not less than twice each year,

the Non-executive Directors meet without the participation of the Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Nominating

and Corporate Governance Committee presides at these meetings.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers a number of factors when determining the competency

and qualification of potential Directors. No single factor is determinative. Relevant considerations include the candidate’s

education and background; his or her general business experience and familiarity with the Group’s businesses; and whether

he or she possesses unique expertise which will be of value to the Group. Further, it is expected that each Director will

devote the necessary time to the fulfilment of his or her duties as a Director. In this regard, the Committee will consider

the number and nature of each Director’s other commitments, including other directorships.

Executive Directors do not receive any additional compensation for serving as a Director. Non-executive Directors receive

fees for serving on the Board and on Committees. The remuneration paid to the Non-executive Directors for the year ended

30 June, 2004 is set out on pages 56 to 58 of the Directors’ Report.

The Company’s Constitution authorises the Board to appoint Managing Directors (including the Chief Executive) with

specific authorised duties and to elect a Chairman to preside at meetings. If a vote, which requires a majority, results in a

tie, the Chairman is granted a second and deciding vote. Mr. K. Rupert Murdoch serves as the Chairman and Chief Executive

of the Company. The Board has taken the view that it is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders that Mr.

K. Rupert Murdoch serve in both such capacities.*

The Company’s Constitution provides that at every annual general meeting, one-third (or the nearest number to but not

exceeding one-third) of the Directors (exclusive of any Managing Directors and Directors appointed since the most recent

annual general meeting) shall retire from office and all vacant directorships may be filled at that meeting.

The Directors to retire in each year are the Directors who have been in office longest since their last election or

appointment. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election. No Director (other than any Managing Director) can serve for

a term longer than three years without re-election. Further, Directors appointed since the last annual general meeting

must retire but are eligible to be re-elected for a three-year term. New Directors are given an orientation regarding the

Group’s businesses, corporate governance and reporting procedures and, on a continuing basis, are advised with respect to

policies and procedures applicable to Board and Committee meetings and the rights and responsibilities of Directors. The

Group does not have a policy with respect to the tenure, retirement or succession of Directors.

Each of the Committees of the Board has the authority to retain, terminate and determine the fees and terms of

consultants, legal counsel and other advisors to such Committees as the Committee may deem appropriate in its

discretion. Any Director wishing to seek independent advice relating to his or her duties as a Board member, at the Group’s

expense, may do so with the prior consent of the Chairman. The Chairman considers these requests on a case-by-case basis.

* This view departs from ASX best practice recommendations 2.2 and 2.3
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Consistent with its legal obligations, as well as part of its commitment to corporate governance, the Board has

implemented the following:

• established various Committees of the Board to assist the Board in the execution of its responsibilities;

• adopted an overall framework of internal control and a business risk management process; and

• established Standards of Business Conduct for Directors, officers and employees and a Code of Ethics for the Chief

Executive and senior financial officers.

These matters are discussed in further detail below.

Board Committees
To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has established the following standing Committees:

• Audit Committee;

• Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee; and

• Compensation Committee.

The composition and charters of these Committees are in accordance with the requirements of corporate governance

guidelines issued by the Australian Stock Exchange (“ASX”), the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related US Securities and

Exchange Commission (“SEC”) rules and NYSE Listing Standards. These Committees consist solely of Non-executive

Directors.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of the following Non-executive Directors and satisfies the requirements of the ASX, SEC

and NYSE:

Roderick I Eddington, Chairman

Peter Barnes

Andrew S B Knight

Thomas J Perkins

Each Audit Committee member is an independent Director in accordance with the NYSE listing standards. In addition, as

determined by the Board in its business judgment, the members of the Audit Committee meet the requirements of the

NYSE and the SEC for membership on audit committees.

The Audit Committee’s Charter is in accordance with the NYSE rules and may be found on the Group’s website.

The Audit Committee’s purpose is to assist the Board of Directors in its oversight of (i) the integrity of the Group’s

financial statements and the Group’s financial reporting processes and systems of internal control, (ii) the qualifications,

independence and performance of the Group’s independent accountants and the performance of the Group’s corporate

auditors and corporate audit function and (iii) the Group’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Audit

Committee provides an avenue of communication among management, the independent accountants, the corporate

auditors and the Board of Directors. In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Audit Committee has full access to all books,

records, facilities and personnel of the Group.

In addition to any other responsibilities, which may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors, the Audit

Committee is responsible for the following matters:

• The compensation of the independent accountants and the pre-approval of all audit engagement fees and terms as well

as all audit-related and non-audit services to be provided by the Group’s independent accountants;

• To evaluate the independent accountant’s qualifications, performance and independence, and present its conclusions

and recommendations with respect to the independent accountants to the Board of Directors on at least an annual

basis;

• To meet with, discuss and review, prior to the annual audit, the scope of the audit to be performed by the independent

public accountants;
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• To review and monitor, at least annually, the plans and activities of the corporate audit department;

• To review a summary of findings from completed corporate audits and a progress report on the current year’s corporate

audit plan;

• To review and discuss with the independent accountants and with management the results of the annual audit of the

Group’s consolidated financial statements;

• To review and discuss with the independent accountants any audit problems or difficulties encountered during the

course of the audit, and management’s response thereto;

• To recommend to the Board of Directors whether the Group’s consolidated financial statements be accepted for

inclusion in the Group’s annual reports filed with the ASX, Australian Securities and Investment Commission (ASIC)

and in the Group’s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the SEC;

• To review and discuss with management and the independent accountants the Group’s half-year financial statements

and any items required to be communicated to the Committee by the independent accountants in accordance with

existing auditing standards;

• In consultation with management, the independent accountants, and the director of the corporate audit department, to

review the integrity of the Group’s financial reporting processes, internal controls and disclosure controls and

procedures;

• To review with management, the corporate auditors and the independent accountants, in separate meetings, if the

Audit Committee deems it appropriate, significant financial reporting issues and judgments made in connection with

the preparation of the financial statements as well as the quality and acceptability of the Group’s accounting policies;

• Discuss, in conjunction with management, the Group’s earnings releases as well as financial information and earnings

guidance provided publicly;

• To review, with the Group’s counsel and management, any legal or regulatory matter that could have a significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements;

• To review the Group’s policies and practices with respect to risk assessment and risk management;

• To establish procedures for:

• The receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Group regarding accounting, internal

accounting controls or auditing matters; and

• The confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Group of concerns regarding questionable accounting

or auditing matters;

• To consider and approve, if appropriate, major changes to the Group’s auditing and accounting principles and practices

as suggested by the independent accountants, management, or the corporate audit department;

• To review with the independent accountants, the corporate audit department and management the extent to which

changes or improvements in financial or accounting practices, as approved by the Audit Committee, have been

implemented;

• To report to the Board of Directors on a regular basis, including a review of any issues that arise with respect to the

quality or integrity of the Group’s financial statements, the Group’s legal and regulatory requirements, the

qualifications, independence and performance of the Group’s independent accountants and the performance of the

corporate audit function;

• To evaluate, at least annually, its own performance and report to the Board of Directors on such evaluation and review

and assess the adequacy of the Audit Committee Charter periodically or as conditions dictate; and

• To prepare a report of the Audit Committee to be included in the Group’s Annual Report and other filings as required by

the applicable regulatory rules, and review any reports that may be required to be filed with the NYSE or other

regulatory agencies with respect to the Audit Committee.
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Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consists of the following Non-executive Directors:

Geoffrey C Bible, Chairman

Kenneth E Cowley AO

Viet Dinh

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consists entirely of Non-executive Directors whom the Board has

determined are independent in accordance with the NYSE listing standards. The Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee’s Charter is in accordance with NYSE rules and may be found on the Group’s website.

In addition to any other responsibilities which may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors, the

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has the following responsibilities:

• To review the qualifications of candidates for Director suggested by Board members, shareholders, management and

others in accordance with criteria recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board;

• To consider the performance of incumbent Directors in determining whether to nominate them for re-election;

• To recommend to the Board a slate of nominees for election or re-election to the Board at each annual meeting of

shareholders;

• To recommend to the Board candidates to be elected to the Board as necessary to fill vacancies and newly created

directorships;

• To make recommendations to the Board as to determinations of Director independence;

• To recommend to the Board, retirement policies for Directors;

• To make recommendations to the Board concerning the function, composition and structure of the Board and its

committees;

• To establish, together with all Non-executive Directors, the frequency of executive sessions in which only Non-executive

Directors will participate and over which the Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will

preside;

• To recommend to the Board, Directors to serve as members of each committee;

• To develop and recommend to the Board a set of corporate governance principles and to review and recommend changes

to those principles, as necessary;

• To advise and make recommendations to the Board on corporate governance matters, to the extent these matters are

not the responsibility of other Committees;

• To develop and recommend to the Board an annual self-evaluation process for the Board;

• To evaluate the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s performance at least annually and report to the

Board on such evaluation;

• To periodically review and assess the adequacy of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter and

recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval; and

• To perform such other duties and responsibilities as are consistent with the purpose of the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee and as the Board or the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall deem

appropriate.
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Compensation Committee
The Compensation Committee consists of the following Non-executive Directors:

Andrew S B Knight, Chairman

Roderick I Eddington

John L Thornton

Thomas J Perkins

The Compensation Committee consists entirely of Non-executive Directors whom the Board has determined are

independent in accordance with the NYSE listing standards. The Compensation Committee’s Charter is in accordance with

the NYSE rules and may be found on the Group’s website. In addition to any other responsibilities which may be assigned

from time to time by the Board of Directors, the Compensation Committee has the following responsibilities:

• To review and approve goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of the Chief Executive, to evaluate the

performance of the Chief Executive in light of these goals and objectives, and recommend to the Board the

compensation of the Chief Executive based on this evaluation;

• To administer and make recommendations to the Board with respect to incentive compensation plans and equity based

plans and to review the cumulative effect of its actions;

• To review and approve compensation, benefits and terms of employment of senior executives who are members of the

Group’s Executive Management Committee;

• To review and make recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s recruitment, retention, termination and

severance policies and procedures for senior executives who are members of the Group’s Executive Management

Committee;

• To monitor compliance by executives with the Group’s stock ownership guidelines as set forth in the Group’s Standards

of Business Conduct;

• To review and assist with the development of executive succession plans, to review and approve the executive

compensation information to be included in the Group’s annual report, and to consult with the Chief Executive

regarding the selection of senior executives;

• To review the compensation of Directors for service on the Board and its Committees and recommend changes in

compensation to the Board;

• To evaluate the Compensation Committee’s performance at least annually and report to the Board on such evaluation;

• To review and assess periodically the adequacy of the Compensation Committee Charter and recommend any proposed

changes to the Board for approval; and

• To perform such other duties and responsibilities as are consistent with the purpose of the Compensation Committee

and as the Board or the Compensation Committee shall deem appropriate.

These responsibilities are to be implemented to attract and maintain executive and director talent and compensate that

talent having regard to corporate performance, all in the best interests of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Controls
The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with its business activities.

Management is ultimately responsible to the Board for the Group’s system of internal control and risk management. The

Group’s risk management policies and procedures cover regulatory, legal, property, treasury, financial reporting and

internal control. A clear organisational structure exists detailing lines of authority and control responsibilities. Each

business unit is responsible and accountable for implementing procedures and controls to manage risks within its business.

Group management has established within in its management and reporting systems a number of risk management

controls. These include:

• Formal operating and strategic planning process for all businesses within the Group;

• Annual budgeting and periodic reporting systems for all businesses which enable the monitoring of progress against

financial and operational performance targets and metrics and evaluation of trends;
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• Guidelines and limits for approval of capital expenditures and investments;

• Policies and procedures for the management of financial risk and treasury operations; and

• Standards of Business Conduct, as discussed in the following section, which are applicable to all employees.

Certain risks cannot be mitigated to an acceptable level by internal controls. Such risks are transferred to third parties in

the international insurance markets to the extent considered appropriate.

An internal audit function operates under a Charter which defines the purpose, authority and responsibility of the

Corporate Audit Department. The Corporate Audit Department’s mission is to provide an independent assessment of risk

and the effectiveness of internal operating and financial controls within the Group’s various operating businesses.

The areas of emphasis for the conduct of the assessment include the:

• adequacy, appropriateness and effectiveness of accounting and operating controls;

• extent of compliance with Group policies and procedures;

• accuracy of and security over data and information;

• accountability for the Group’s assets to safeguard against loss;

• adequacy of reviews made by the operating companies to ensure an effective internal control environment is fostered;

and

• economy and efficiency with which resources are employed.

The results of each audit and agreed-upon management action plan are reported on a timely basis to the management

responsible for implementing changes.

The Corporate Audit Department reports to the Group’s Audit Committee and meets with them at least four times a year to

review the annual Internal Audit Plan and the results of its activities.

The activities of the Corporate Audit Department are separate and distinct from the external auditors. However, active

coordination between the two groups is recognised as essential in order to maximise the Group’s return on investment for

audit services.

The full text of the Charter of the Corporate Audit Department is available on the Group’s website.

Ethical Standards
At a Board meeting on 27 February, 1996, the Board adopted “Standards of Business Conduct” which were revised in May

2004. The full text of the Standards may be found on the Group’s website. The Standards confirm the Group’s policy to

conduct its affairs in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and observe the highest standards of business

ethics. The Group intends that the spirit, as well as the letter of those standards is followed by all Directors, officers and

employees of the Group, its subsidiaries and divisions. This is communicated to each new Director, officer and employee and

has already been communicated to those in positions at the time the Standards were adopted. The Standards deal with the

following main areas:

• corporate assets and information:

(a) Group funds and property;

(b) corporate records and accounting;

(c) confidential and proprietary information;

(d) insider trading;

(e) legal disputes;

• conflicts of interest;
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• dealing with others:

(a) government officials;

(b) business hospitality;

(c) prohibited payments;

• equal opportunity and unlawful harassment;

• safety of the workplace and environmental protection; and

• relationships with competitors and other trade practices.

Employees are encouraged to raise any matters of concern with their supervisor or the relevant Group’s general counsel.

The Standards also apply to ensure compliance with stock exchange disclosure requirements and to ensure accountability

at a senior management level for that compliance.

Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive and Senior Financial Officers
To further promote ethical and responsible decision making, the Board has established a Code of Ethics for the Chief

Executive and senior financial officers that is included in the Group’s Standards of Business Conduct.

Protection for Company “whistleblowers”
The Group has established procedures which have been incorporated into the Group’s Standards of Business Conduct to

facilitate the submission and review of complaints from employees regarding questionable accounting, internal control or

auditing matters on a confidential and anonymous basis. These procedures enable employees to make their concerns known

without fear of retaliation and in the knowledge that procedures are in place to act upon their complaints.

Shareholder Communication
Shareholders play an integral part in corporate governance and the Board ensures that shareholders are kept fully

informed through:

• information provided on the Group’s website (www.newscorp.com), including the Annual Report which is distributed to

all shareholders electing to receive it and the Full Financial Report which is available to all shareholders on request;

• reports and other disclosures made to the ASIC, the SEC, and the Stock Exchanges in Australia, New York, New Zealand

and London; and

• notices and explanatory memoranda of extraordinary and general meetings.

Shareholders may raise matters of concern at general meetings. Shareholders and other interested parties may

communicate directly with the Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee by writing to the

Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, The News Corporation Limited, 1211 Avenue of the

Americas, New York, N.Y. 10036.

Corporate Reporting
In connection with the Company’s periodic reports filed with the SEC, the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer have

made certifications required by Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The Company has followed the ASX Corporate Governance recommendations during the reporting period, except for

departures identified in this statement.
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Executive Management Committee
The Executive Management Committee is an informal body comprising Executive Directors of the Company as well as

senior executives from the Group’s businesses or companies in which the Group holds a significant interest. The primary

objective of the Executive Management Committee is to strengthen the coordination and profitability of the Group’s

activities. The Executive Management Committee discusses major operating issues; evaluates opportunities and business

risks; advises the Board on refining and redefining the Group’s priorities worldwide and by market; and reviews and advises

the Board on the strategic focus and direction of all major businesses of the Group. In advising the Chief Executive and the

Board, the Executive Management Committee also considers strategic direction, brand management, corporate

communications, human resources and risk management. As at the date of the Directors’ Report contained herein, the

Group’s Executive Management Committee includes the following persons:

K R Murdoch, AC Chairman and Chief Executive, The News Corporation Limited

P Carlucci, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, News America Marketing

P Chernin, President and Chief Operating Officer, The News Corporation Limited

D F DeVoe, Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, The News Corporation Limited

A Disney, Executive Vice President for Content, The News Corporation Limited

J Friedman, President and Chief Executive Officer, HarperCollins Publishers, Inc.

J N Gianopulos, Chairman, Fox Filmed Entertainment

G Ginsberg, Executive Vice President, Investor Relations and Corporate Communications, The News Corporation Limited

J Hartigan, Chief Executive Officer, News Limited

D Hill, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Fox Sports Television Group

L Hinton, Executive Chairman, News International plc

L K Murdoch, Deputy Chief Operating Officer, The News Corporation Limited; Chairman, News Limited

A Peled, Chief Executive Officer, NDS Group plc

M Pompadur, Executive Vice President, The News Corporation Limited

T Rothman, Chairman, Fox Filmed Entertainment

A M Siskind, Senior Executive Vice President and Group General Counsel, The News Corporation Limited

Important Information about this Concise Report

IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS
The Directors’ Report, Concise Financial Report and Independent Audit Report contained within this document represent

a Concise Report.

The financial statements and disclosures in the Concise Financial Report on pages 62 to 79 have been derived from The News

Corporation Limited’s Full Financial Report for the year ended 30 June, 2004. A more comprehensive analysis of the Group’s

financial performance, financial position and financing and investing activities is given in the Full Financial Report.

A copy of the Full Financial Report, including the Independent Audit Report on the Full Financial Report, is available and

will be sent to any shareholder without charge on request by phoning Australia 61 2 9288 3233, United Kingdom 44 207 782 6000

or United States 1 212 852 7059. All reports can be accessed via the internet at www.newscorp.com.
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The Directors present their report together with the Concise Financial Report of the Group for the year ended 30 June, 2004

and the auditors’ independent audit report thereon. The following Directors were in office during the period from 1 July,

2003 to the date of this report unless stated otherwise:

K R Murdoch AC
(Age 73). Managing Director and Chief Executive of The News Corporation Limited since 1979, Chairman since 1991.

Director of Fox Entertainment Group, Inc. since 1985, Chairman since 1992 and Chief Executive Officer since 1995.

Chairman of STAR Group from 1993 to 1998, Director since 1993.

Director of British Sky Broadcasting Group plc since 1990 and Chairman since 1999.

Director of Gemstar-TV Guide International, Inc. since 2001.

Chairman of The DIRECTV Group, Inc. since December 2003.

P Barnes
(Age 61). President of Winemakers’ Federation of Australia since 2001.

Director of Ansell Ltd. since 2001.

Director of Metcash Trading Ltd. since 1999.

Director of Samuel Smith & Sons Pty Ltd. since 1999, Chairman since 2002.

President of Philip Morris Asia Inc. from 1993 until 1998.

Non-executive Director of The News Corporation Limited since April 2004 and member of the Audit Committee.

G C Bible
(Age 67). Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Altria Group Inc., formerly Philip Morris Companies Inc., from 1995 to 2002.

Non-executive Director of The News Corporation Limited since 1998 and Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee.

C Carey
(Age 50). Chief Executive Officer and Director of The DIRECTV Group, Inc. since December 2003.

Director of PanAmSat Corporation since December 2003.

Executive Director of The News Corporation Limited since 1996, Consultant from 2002 until 2003.

Director of British Sky Broadcasting Group plc since 2003.

Director of Gateway, Inc. since 1996.

P Chernin
(Age 53). Executive Director, President and Chief Operating Officer of The News Corporation Limited since 1996.

Director, President and Chief Operating Officer of Fox Entertainment Group, Inc. since 1998.

Director of Gemstar-TV Guide International, Inc. since 2002.

Director of The DIRECTV Group, Inc. since December 2003.

K E Cowley AO
(Age 69). Director of Independent Newspapers Limited since 1990, Chairman since 2001.

Chairman of R.M. Williams Holdings Limited since 1994.

Director of The News Corporation Limited from 1979, Non-executive Director since 1997 and member of Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee.

D F DeVoe
(Age 57). Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Finance Director of The News Corporation Limited since 1990.

Deputy Finance Director of The News Corporation Limited from 1985 to 1990.

Director of Fox Entertainment Group, Inc. since 1991, Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since 1998.

Director of STAR Group since 1993.

Director of British Sky Broadcasting Group plc since 1994.

Non-executive Director of NDS Group plc since 1996.

Director of Gemstar-TV Guide International, Inc. since 2001.

Director of The DIRECTV Group, Inc. since December 2003.

V Dinh
(Age 36). Professor of Law at Georgetown University since 1996.

Assistant Attorney General for Legal Policy in the U.S. Department of Justice from 2001 until 2003.

Law Clerk to Supreme Court Justice Sandra Day O’Connor from 1994 until 1995.

Non-executive Director of The News Corporation Limited since April 2004 and member of the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee.
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R I Eddington
(Age 54). Chief Executive of British Airways plc since 2000.

Director of John Swire & Sons Pty Limited since 1997.

Non-executive Director of The News Corporation Limited since 2000, Executive Director from 1999 to 2000, Chairman of the

Audit Committee and member of the Compensation Committee.

J A M Erkko KBE
(Age 71). Chairman of Asipex AG since 1999.

Director of SanomaWSOY Group from 1999 until 2003; Chairman from 1999 to 2001. Chairman of Sanoma Corporation from

1972 to 1999.

Non-executive Director of The News Corporation Limited from 1992 and retired in October 2003, member of the Audit

Committee from 1992 until October 2003 and member of the Compensation Committee from 2002 until October 2003.

A S B Knight
(Age 64). Non-executive Director of Rothschild Investment Trust Capital Partners plc since 1997.

Executive Director of The News Corporation Limited from 1991 to 1994, Non-executive Director since 1994, Chairman of the

Compensation Committee and member of the Audit Committee.

G J Kraehe
(Age 61) Chairman, Blue Scope Steel Limited since 2002.

Director of National Australia Bank Limited since 1997 and Chairman since January 2004.

Non-executive Director of The News Corporation Limited from 2001 and resigned in April 2004, Chairman of the Audit

Committee from 2002 until April 2004.

J R Murdoch
(Age 31) Chief Executive Officer and Director of British Sky Broadcasting Group plc since 2003.

Director of Yankee Global Enterprises LLC since 1999.

Executive Director of The News Corporation Limited from 2000 and resigned in November 2003.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of STAR Group from 2000 until November 2003.

Non-executive Director of NDS Group plc from 1999 until November 2003.

Director of Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited from 2000 until November 2003.

L K Murdoch
(Age 32). Executive Director of The News Corporation Limited since 1996 and Senior Executive Vice President from 1999 to

2000. Deputy Chief Operating Officer since 2000.

Executive Director of News Limited since 1995, Chairman since 1997.

Director of Fox Entertainment Group, Inc. since 2002.

Deputy Chairman of STAR Group since 1995.

Non-executive Director of NDS Group plc since 2002.

Director of Gemstar-TV Guide International, Inc. since 2001.

Director of Foxtel Management Pty Limited since 1998.

T J Perkins
(Age 72). Partner at Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers since 1980.

Non-executive Director of The News Corporation Limited since 1996, member of the Audit and Compensation Committees.

S S Shuman
(Age 69). Managing Director of Allen & Company LLC since 1970.

Director of Six Flags, Inc. since 2000.

Non-executive Director of The News Corporation Limited since 1982.

A M Siskind
(Age 65). Director and Group General Counsel of The News Corporation Limited since 1991, Senior Executive Vice President

since 1996.

Director of British Sky Broadcasting Group plc since 1992.

Director of STAR Group since 1993.

Non-executive Director of NDS Group plc since 1996.

Director, Senior Executive Vice President and General Counsel of Fox Entertainment Group, Inc. since 1998.
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J L Thornton
(Age 50). Professor of Global Leadership at Tsinghua University of Beijing since 2003.

President and Co-Chief Operating Officer of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. from 1999 until 2003.

Senior Advisor to Goldman Sachs Group, Inc and Director of The Goldman Sachs Foundation.

Director of the Ford Motor Company since 1996, Intel Corporation since 2003 and the DIRECTV Group since December 2003.

Non-Executive Director of The News Corporation Limited since June 2004 and member of the Compensation Committee.

Directors’ Meetings
The following Directors were in office during the financial year, and attended the following number of Board meetings:

Meetings of Committees
Directors’ Audit Nominating Compensation
Meetings and Corporate

Governance

Number of meetings held: 7 5 2 4

Number of meetings attended:

K R Murdoch AC 7

P Barnes (a) 1

G C Bible 7 2

C Carey 7

P Chernin 6

K E Cowley AO 7 2

D F DeVoe 7

V Dinh (b) 1

R I Eddington (c) 7 1 2 3

J A M Erkko KBE (d) 0 1 0

A S B Knight 5 5 4

G J Kraehe (e) 4 4

J R Murdoch (f) 1

L K Murdoch 7

T J Perkins 7 5 4

S S Shuman 7

A M Siskind 7

J. L Thornton (g) 1

(a) Represents attendance at all meetings subsequent to (i) appointment to the Board in April 2004 and (ii) appointment to

the Audit Committee upon reconstitution of board committees in June 2004

(b) Represents attendance at all meetings subsequent to (i) appointment to Board in April 2004 and (ii) appointment to

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee upon reconstitution of Board Committees in June 2004

(c) Represents attendance at all meetings upon (i) appointment to the Compensation Committee in October 2003, (ii)

appointment to the Audit Committee in June 2004 and (iii) retirement from the Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee in June 2004

(d) Represents attendance at all meetings prior to resignation from the Board in October 2003

(e) Represents attendance at all meetings prior to resignation from the Board in April 2004

(f) Represents attendance at all meetings prior to resignation from the Board in November 2003

(g) Represents attendance at all meetings upon appointment to the Board in June 2004

Numerous other meetings of the Board attended by a quorum of two or more Directors were held to deal with the day to day

business of the Group.
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Principal Activities of the Group
The principal activities of the Group during the financial year were:

• filmed entertainment;

• television;

• direct broadcast satellite television;

• cable network programming;

• magazines and inserts;

• newspapers; and

• book publishing.

The principal activities of associated entities include:

• direct broadcast satellite and cable television;

• newspaper publishing; and

• print and electronic television guidance applications.

Group Results
The net profit attributable to members of the parent entity was $2,312 million (2003 $1,808 million).

Dividends
The following dividends have been declared since the beginning of the financial year:

a) The Directors of The News Corporation Limited recommend the payment on 26 October, 2004 of a final fully franked

dividend of 1.5 cents per ordinary share and 3.75 cents per preferred limited voting ordinary share on the issued shares at

17 September, 2004, the entitlement date for the final dividend. The final dividend has not been provided for in the

attached financial statements in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, as the dividend was not declared and

announced by the Directors prior to 30 June, 2004. A discount of 10% will apply to the weighted average market price of

the ordinary and preferred limited voting ordinary shares used to determine the respective entitlements under the

Dividend Reinvestment Plan.

b) On 30 April, 2004 an interim unfranked dividend, in respect of profits for the year ended 30 June, 2004 of 1.5 cents per

ordinary share and 3.75 cents per preferred limited voting ordinary share totalling $176 million was paid or distributed

according to the operation of the Group’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan.

c) On 15 October, 2003 a final unfranked dividend of 1.5 cents per ordinary share and 3.75 cents per preferred limited voting

ordinary share totalling $153 million was paid or distributed according to the operation of the Group’s Dividend

Reinvestment Plan.

d) Unfranked dividends were paid on the outstanding perpetual preference shares during the year amounting to $38

million.

Review of Operations
A review of the operations of the Group during the financial year and of the results of those operations is detailed in the

front section of this Annual Report.

State of Affairs of the Group during the Financial Year
The Directors are not aware of any significant change in the state of affairs of the Group that occurred during the financial

year which has not been covered elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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Likely Developments
In April 2004, the Group announced that it would pursue a reorganisation that would change the Group’s place of

incorporation from Australia to the United States. In connection with this reorganisation, the Group would acquire from

the Murdoch Interests the approximate 58% interest in Queensland Press Pty Ltd. (“QPL”) not already owned by the Group

through the acquisition of the Cruden Group of companies. The Murdoch Interests are certain trusts, the beneficiaries of

which include Mr. Rupert Murdoch, members of his family and certain charities.The proposal is subject to the approval of

shareholders, option holders and the Australian Federal Court and regulatory approval. If approved, the transaction is

expected to be completed by the end of this calendar year. Further details on the proposal are included at Note 10 to the

Concise Financial Report.

Other than matters referred to in this report, the Directors have no reference to make as to likely developments in the

operations of the Group and the expected results of those operations in subsequent financial years. In the opinion of the

Directors, any further disclosure would prejudice the interest of the Group.

Environmental Regulations
The Group’s operations are subject to various environmental regulations in the countries in which it has a presence.

In Australia, the Group has established an environmental management system in each jurisdiction, which monitors

compliance with existing environmental regulations and new regulations as they are enacted. The management system

includes procedures to be followed should an incident occur which adversely impacts the environment. The Group’s

operations hold all relevant environmental licences and permits and have implemented monitoring procedures to ensure

that it complies with licence conditions.

The Directors are not aware of any breaches of any legislation during the financial year which are material in nature.

Subsequent Events
Other than items disclosed in the financial statements, the Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has

arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the

Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in the financial years subsequent to the current

financial year.

Directors’ and Senior Executives’ Remuneration

Non-executive Directors
Fees paid to Non-executive Directors on the Board take into consideration the level of fees paid to Board members of other

multinational corporations, the size and complexity of the Group’s operations and the responsibilities and workload

requirements of Board members.

Effective as of 1 July, 2003 Non-executive Directors receive an annual retainer of $175,512 (US$125,000) with each director

investing $56,164 (US$40,000) of this retainer in the Company’s stock through a deferred stock unit account. Audit

Committee members receive an additional $21,061 (US$15,000) per year, Compensation Committee members an additional

$8,425 (US$6,000) per year and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee members an additional $8,425 (US$6,000)

per year with the Audit Committee Chairman receiving an additional $14,041 (US$10,000) per year and Compensation and

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Chairmen to receive an additional $7,020 (US$5,000) annually.

Because the focus of the Board is on the long-term direction of the Group, there is no direct link between Non-executive

Director remuneration and the short-term results of the Group.

Executive Directors
The broad remuneration policy is to ensure each compensation package properly reflects the relevant person’s duties and

responsibilities and that remuneration is competitive in attracting, retaining and motivating people of the highest quality.

As the Group operates in a highly competitive environment and continually seeks to improve value for shareholders, it is

imperative that remuneration levels are set to be among the leaders of major multinational corporations, in the

appropriate markets.

Directors’ fees are not paid to Executive Directors since the responsibilities of Board membership are considered in

determining remuneration provided as part of the normal employment conditions.
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Directors and Senior Executives’ Remuneration (Continued)
The table below sets out the primary benefit, which is fees, and other amounts paid by the Group to Non-executive

Directors of the Group for the year ended 30 June, 2004:

Fees (5) Pension (6) Equity/

Directors: Options (7)

US$000 US$000 US$000

Non-executive

P Barnes (2) 29 2

G C Bible 136 6

K E Cowley AO 131 6

V Dinh (2) 26

R I Eddington 137 6

J A M Errko KBE (3) 43 6

A S B Knight 170 6

G J Kraehe 125 8 6

T J Perkins 146 6

S S Shuman 150 6

J L Thornton (4)

The table below sets out the primary benefits, which includes salaries and bonuses, and other amounts paid by the Group to

Executive Directors and the five officers receiving the highest emoluments, of the Group, for the year ended 30 June, 2004:

Salary Bonuses Pension Equity/ Other Number of

Directors: (1) (8) Options Options 

(7) Granted in

Current

Year (8)

US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000

Executive

K R Murdoch AC 4,509 12,500 3,502 145

C Carey (9) 818 1,500 660 6 2,319

P Chernin 8,296 8,894 434 578 380

D F DeVoe 2,292 2,797 754 277 20

L K Murdoch 1,800 2,335 206 196 17

J R Murdoch (10) 346 750 17 127

A M Siskind 2,142 1,747 664 277 5

Officers: (11)

R Ailes 4,000 3,114 95 515 350,000

J Gianopulos 2,080 2,100 32 468 16 272,400

D Hill 2,034 1,900 36 480 15 311,600

T Rothman 2,080 2,100 26 468 16 272,400

M Stern 1,380 3,500 19 1,000 10 904,800

(1) Respective positions held by Executive Directors are detailed at Note 28 of the Full Financial Report.

(2) Messrs P Barnes and V Dinh joined the Board in April 2004.

(3) Mr. Erkko KBE retired from the Board in October 2003.

(4) Mr. Thornton joined the Board in June 2004.

(5) For Non-executive Directors, includes the value of deferred stock units credited in fiscal 2004.

(6) Amounts represent compulsory contributions to the pension plan for Australian directors.

(7) These options are valued at grant date using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model and were granted under the

Group’s executive share option plan described in the Full Financial Report Note 23. Pursuant to guidelines issued on 1

July, 2003 by ASIC, there has been a change in the determination of the amount of emoluments disclosed relating to

options granted during a fiscal year. In fiscal years prior to 2003, 100% of the value of options granted was disclosed as



emoluments in the year of grant. ASIC guidelines now require that the value of options granted be disclosed as

emoluments over their vesting period, being 4 years from the date of grant. Accordingly, the value of emolument

recorded in the remuneration table above for executive and non-executive directors represents only the vested portion of

the full option value for options granted during the fiscal 2003 and 2004 financial years. No options were granted to

directors in fiscal 2004.

The following table lists the value of emolument attributable to options granted in financial years prior to fiscal 2003,

and previously disclosed as emoluments in prior years, that vest in the current year.

US$000 US$000

Non-executive Directors Executive Directors

G C Bible 18 K R Murdoch AC

K E Cowley AO 18 C Carey 207

R I Eddington 18 P Chernin 1,675

J A M Erkko KBE 18 D F DeVoe 415

A S B Knight 18 J R Murdoch 617

G J Kraehe 7 L K Murdoch 374

T J Perkins 18 A M Siskind 415

S S Shuman 18

Officers

R Ailes 443

J Gianopulos 760

D Hill 325

T Rothman 784

M Stern 1,293

(8) All options are over preferred limited voting shares were granted during  the financial year. The exercise price of all

grants to Officers (including 404,800 of Mr Stern’s grant) is $9.89 and the options expire on 9 August, 2013 for each Officer.

Additionally, the exercise price of 500,000 of options granted to Mr Stern is $9.96 and the options expire on 1 January,

2014. For Executive Directors (excluding Messrs C Carey and J R Murdoch), includes the value of cash stock appreciation

rights granted over their vesting period, being 4 years from date of grant.

(9) Mr. C Carey resigned from his position in the Group in January 2004. Subsequent to his resignation, Mr. C Carey

continued his appointment as a Director. Concurrent with his resignation, Mr. C Carey received compensation totalling

US$2,319,000 which is included in Other amounts.

(10)Mr. J R Murdoch resigned his executive position and his directorship in November 2003.

(11)Each Officer is a “Specified Executive” under AASB 1046, “Director and Executive Disclosures by Disclosing Entities”.

Directors’ Interests and Benefits
Information on Directors’ Shareholdings as at the date of this report is contained in the Full Financial Report Note 28.

Share Options
Details of the share options are disclosed in the Full Financial Report Note 28.

The options carry no right to participate in any other share issue and no options have been exercised by a Director, except

as noted in the Full Financial Report Note 28.

Indemnification of Directors
To the extent permitted by law, the Group has indemnified (fully insured) each Director, principal executive officer and

secretary of the Group against any liability that may arise as a result of work performed in their respective capacities.

The Directors have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid in

respect of the Directors’ and Officers’ Liability and Legal Expenses insurance contracts as such disclosure is prohibited

under the terms of the contract.
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Rounding of Amounts
The parent entity is a company of the kind specified in ASIC class order 98/0100. In accordance with that class order,

amounts in this report and the accompanying Concise Financial Report have been rounded off to the nearest million

dollars unless specifically stated to be otherwise.

This report is signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors.

K R Murdoch AC

Director

D F DeVoe

Director

12 August, 2004
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Statement of Financial Performance
Operating income for the year ended 30 June, 2004 was $4.3 billion, which was consistent with the previous year. The Group’s

results have been impacted by the decline of the US dollar which materially impacted the Group’s conversion of the results

of its US operations into Australian dollars. In US dollars, operating income increased 21% over the prior year from

US$2,532 million to US$3,064 million. This result was driven by improved performances across most of the Group’s

segments.

The strong performance of the Filmed Entertainment segment was primarily driven by the worldwide home entertainment

and pay-TV performances of X-2: X-Men United, 28 Days Later, Daredevil, Drumline, Just Married, Phone Booth and various

catalogue titles combined with several successful theatrical releases during the year including The League of Extraordinary

Gentlemen and Cheaper By the Dozen.

The Television segment saw operating income decline to $1,344 million from $1,459 million but in US dollars the Television

segment operating income increased 12% primarily reflecting earnings improvement at the FOX Broadcasting Company

and Fox Television Stations, and higher contributions from STAR.

The success of the Cable Network Programming segment reflects continued revenue growth across all of the Group’s

primary cable television channels, and the absence of losses from the Los Angeles Dodgers, which was sold during the third

quarter.

The Direct Broadcast Satellite Television segment reflects the SKY Italia results since its consolidation on 30 April, 2003.

For the full year, SKY Italia reported an operating loss of $376 million as compared to a loss of $104 million for the two

months in the prior year, while increasing its subscriber base to nearly 2.7 million. Over 90% of the new subscribers during

the year opted for a premium-programming tier including movies and/or sports programming.

The Magazine and Inserts segment operating income decreased to $381 million from $438 million but in US dollars the

Magazine and Inserts segment operating income increased 6% reflecting higher contributions from the free-standing

inserts division resulting principally from higher demand for packaged goods and custom publishing pages.

During fiscal 2004, the Group’s Newspapers segment operating income increased to $831 million from $686 million in the

prior year. In the U.K., the increase in operating income was primarily from circulation revenue growth which was achieved

across all titles, with the largest increase at The Sun where reduced cover price initiatives a year ago adversely affected

results. The U.K newspaper group experienced a 7% advertising growth for the fiscal year, primarily from The Sun with

higher volumes on display and classified advertising. In Australia, display and classified advertising achieved strong

growth throughout the year with ongoing strength in national display together with real estate, retail and employment

advertising.

The Book Publishing segment reported operating income of $221 million which was consistent with the prior year. In US

dollars the Book Publishing segment operating income increased by 19% from fiscal 2003 and was driven by solid

performances around the world, highlighted by blockbuster sales of Zondervan’s The Purpose Driven Life by Rick Warren.

In the year ended 30 June, 2004, associated entities generated income of $322 million compared to a loss of $89 million in the

previous year. The improved net profit in 2004 primarily reflects increased contributions from British Sky Broadcasting

Group plc (“BSkyB”) due to continued subscriber growth, the absence of Stream’s losses in the current year following its

consolidation on 30 April, 2003 and favourable results from Regional Programming Partners primarily due to the income

recognised from the termination of a sports broadcast rights agreement. These favourable results were partially offset by

the inclusion of losses relating to the Group’s investment in The DIRECTV Group, which was acquired at the end of

December 2003.

The Group recorded a net loss from Other items before tax of $26 million in 2004. This amount principally reflects the loss on

the sale of the Los Angeles Dodgers offset by the gain on the sale of the shares in SKY PerfecTV!. The net profit

attributable to members of the parent entity was $2.3 billion (2003 $1.8 billion).
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Statement of Financial Position
Total assets as at 30 June, 2004 increased $6.0 billion from the prior year to $73.7 billion. The major changes occurred in the

following:

• Investments in associated entities increased by $9.4 billion, primarily reflecting the acquisition of DIRECTV for $9.3

billion (being cash of $4.2 billion and shares issued of $5.1 billion).

• The reduction in other investments is primarily due to the sale of the shares in SKY PerfecTV! during the year and the

return of capital invested in the form of a special dividend from Monarchy Enterprises Holdings B.V.

• The reduction in publishing rights, titles and television licences primarily reflect the decline of the US dollar and the

sale of the Los Angeles Dodgers.

• The reduction in property, plant and equipment is due to depreciation exceeding capital expenditures, the sale of the

Los Angeles Dodgers and the decline of the US dollar.

• Total liabilities as at 30 June, 2004 declined $0.8 billion from the prior year to $28.2 billion. The major changes occurred

in the following:

• Interest bearing liabilities were consistent with the prior year with $1.0 billion in New Millennium debt reclassified

from outside equity interest being offset by net debt repayments of $0.5 billion and the decline of the US dollar.

• The reduction in total payables of $1.2 billion primarily reflects the decline of the US dollar, $0.4 billion reduction in

payables relating to sports and other television program rights and various other movements.

Statement of Cash Flows
Overall cash decreased by $0.9 billion due to the following:

• Cash provided by operating activities was $3.4 billion primarily due to operating profit before depreciation of $3.2

billion.

• Cash used in investing activities was $4.3 billion. Net investment spending was $5.1 billion, reflecting cash paid for

DIRECTV of $4.2 billion, businesses acquired of $0.3 billion as well as continued investments into various cable and pay

television channels and platforms worldwide. Capital expenditures amounted to $0.5 billion. These were offset by $1.2

billion in proceeds from disposal of non current assets, the most significant of which were the sale of the LA Dodgers,

the sale of the Staples Center investment and the sale of shares in SKY PerfecTV!.

• Cash provided by financing activities was $0.2 billion. Net long term debt repayments of $0.5 billion and dividend

payments of $0.3 billion were offset by a reduction in cash on deposit of $0.2 billion and proceeds from issuance of shares

of $0.8 billion, of which $0.7 billion related to exercise of Liberty Media’s share options in October 2003.
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Consolidated

2004 2003 2002

Note A$ million (except per share amounts)

Sales revenue 2 29,428 29,913 29,014

Operating expenses 2 (25,126) (25,561) (25,472)

Operating income 2 4,302 4,352 3,542

Net profit (loss) from associated entities 5 322 (89) (1,434)

Borrowing costs (845) (1,000) (1,291)

Investment income 215 209 291

Net borrowing costs (630) (791) (1,000)

Exchangeable securities expense (113) (94) (93)

Other revenues before income tax 6 1,484 679 5,627

Other expenses before income tax 6 (1,510) (1,057) (17,601)

Profit (loss) from ordinary activities before income tax 3,855 3,000 (10,959)

Income tax (expense) benefit on

Ordinary activities before other items (1,246) (989) (640)

Other items 6 (1) 215 (15)

Net income tax expense (1,247) (774) (655)

Net profit (loss) from ordinary activities after income tax 2,608 2,226 (11,614)

Net profit attributable to outside equity interests 3 (296) (418) (348)

Net profit (loss) attributable to members of the parent entity 2,312 1,808 (11,962)

Net exchange losses recognised directly in equity (389) (4,064) (3,021)

Items recognised directly in equity 7 152 (267)

Total change in equity other than those resulting from transactions

with owners as owners 1,923 (2,104) (15,250)

Basic earnings per share on net profit (loss) attributable to members of the parent entity

Ordinary shares $0.368 $0.307 $(2.170)

Preferred limited voting ordinary shares $0.442 $0.368 $(2.604)

Ordinary and preferred limited voting ordinary shares $0.415 $0.344 $(2.431)

Diluted earnings per share on net profit (loss) attributable to members of the parent entity

Ordinary shares $0.364 $0.305 $(2.170)

Preferred limited voting ordinary shares $0.437 $0.366 $(2.604)

Ordinary and preferred limited voting ordinary shares $0.411 $0.342 $(2.431)

The Statement of Financial Performance is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated

2004 2003

A$ million

Assets

Current Assets

Cash 5,805 6,746

Cash on deposit 412

Receivables 6,039 5,701

Inventories 2,193 1,931

Other 563 483

Total Current Assets 15,012 14,861

Non-Current Assets

Cash on deposit 698

Receivables 1,076 1,219

Investments in associated entities 14,971 5,526

Other investments 811 1,195

Inventories 3,824 4,103

Property, plant and equipment 5,565 6,299

Publishing rights, titles and television licences 31,185 32,724

Goodwill 318 377

Other 976 745

Total Non-Current Assets 58,726 52,886

Total Assets 73,738 67,747

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 1,553 33

Payables 7,847 8,298

Tax liabilities 705 714

Provisions 332 258

Total Current Liabilities 10,437 9,303

Non-Current Liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 10,917 12,396

Payables 2,846 3,545

Tax liabilities 974 666

Provisions 982 1,032

Total Non-Current Liabilities excluding exchangeable securities 15,719 17,639

Exchangeable securities 2,055 2,084

Total Liabilities 28,211 29,026

Shareholders’ Equity

Contributed equity 34,424 28,427

Reserves 2,771 2,760

Retained profits 2,682 1,137

Shareholders’ equity attributable to members of the parent entity 39,877 32,324

Outside equity interests in controlled entities 5,650 6,397

Total Shareholders’ Equity 45,527 38,721

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 73,738 67,747

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated

2004 2003 2002

A$ million

Operating activity
Net profit (loss) attributable to members of the parent entity 2,312 1,808 (11,962)

Adjustment for non-cash and non-operating activities:

Associated entity (profits) losses (367) 159 314

Distributions from investees 187 35 74

Outside equity interest 314 421 278

Depreciation and amortisation 844 776 749

Other items, net 54 90 13,179

Change in financial position:

Receivables (480) (559) (51)

Inventories (459) (206) 515

Payables 465 (657) (396)

Tax liabilities and provisions 562 616 378

Cash provided by operating activity 3,432 2,483 3,078

Investing and other activity
Property, plant and equipment (517) (551) (505)

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (289) (644) (1,770)

Investments in associated entities (4,639) (794) (942)

Other investments (130) (145) (667)

Repayment of loan by an associate 170

Proceeds from sale of non-current assets and business disposals 1,245 167 4,284

Cash (used in) provided by investing activity (4,330) (1,797) 400

Financing activity
Issuance of debt and exchangeable securities 785 3,172

Repayment of debt and exchangeable securities (1,351) (3,673) (2,181)

Cash on deposit 232 (698)

Issuance of shares 834 1,927 133

Dividends paid (289) (272) (278)

Other (7)

Cash provided by (used in) financing activity 211 456 (2,333)

Net (decrease) increase in cash (687) 1,142 1,145

Opening cash balance 6,746 6,337 5,615

Exchange movement on opening cash balance (254) (733) (423)

Closing cash balance 5,805 6,746 6,337

Gross cash flows from operating activity
Cash from trading operations

Receipts 28,946 29,361 28,970

Payments (24,402) (25,561) (24,471)

4,544 3,800 4,499

Dividend and distribution receipts 199 48 86

Interest receipts 199 207 247

Interest payments (884) (1,084) (1,324)

Income tax payments (592) (394) (337)

Payments on exchangeable securities (34) (94) (93)

Cash provided by operating activity 3,432 2,483 3,078

The Statement of Cash Flows is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note 1 Basis of preparation of the Concise Financial Report

The Concise Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standard AASB

1039 “Concise Financial Reports” and other mandatory professional reporting requirements. The financial statements and

specific disclosures have been derived from The News Corporation Limited’s Full Financial Report for the financial year.

Other information included in the Concise Financial Report is consistent with The News Corporation Limited’s Full

Financial Report. The Concise Financial Report does not, and cannot be expected to, provide as full an understanding of

the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing activities of the Group as the Full Financial

Report.

Dividends payable are recognised when their payment is determined and announced following a meeting of the Board of

Directors.

The Group discloses as Other revenues and Other expenses those transactions, the financial impact of which are included

within profit (loss) from ordinary activities, that are considered significant by reason of their size, nature or effect on the

Group’s financial performance for the year. Other revenues and Other expenses related to transactions of the Group’s

associated entities are included in Net profit (loss) from associated entities. The term Other Items includes both Other

revenues and Other expenses.

Where necessary, comparative amounts have been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current year

disclosures.

The Concise Financial Report has been prepared on a basis consistent with the previous year, and in accordance with

historical cost conventions.
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Note 2 Business segment data
Consolidated 2004 A$ million

Direct

Cable Broadcast

Filmed Network Satellite Magazines Book

Note Entertainment Television Programming Television & Inserts Newspapers Publishing Other Unallocated Total

Sales revenue 7,283 7,059 3,563 2,338 1,375 4,808 1,791 1,211 29,428

Operating expenses (6,039) (5,715) (2,696) (2,714) (994) (3,977) (1,570) (1,421) (25,126)

Operating income 1,244 1,344 867 (376) 381 831 221 (210) 4,302

Net profit (loss) from 

associated entities before 

other items 5 (2) 8 111 163 67 20 367

Net borrowing costs (630) (630)

Exchangeable securities 

expense (113) (113)

Income tax expense 

before other items (1,246) (1,246)

Outside equity interest  

before other items 3 (314) (314)

Profit before other items 2,366

Other revenues before  

income tax 6 73 100 1,015 9 287 1,484

Other expenses before 

income tax 6 (2) (58) (1,157) (13) (45) (235) (1,510)

Income tax expense 

on other items 6 (1) (1)

Net (loss) profit from 

associate other items 5 (6) 63 (22) (80) (45)

Outside equity interest 

on other items 3 18 18

Net profit (loss) attributable 

to members of the parent 

entity 1,313 1,388 836 (163) 381 840 221 (218) (2,286) 2,312



Note 2 Business segment data (continued) 
Consolidated 2003 A$ million

Direct

Cable Broadcast

Filmed Network Satellite Magazines Book

Note Entertainment Television Programming Television & Inserts Newspapers Publishing Other Unallocated Total

Sales revenue 7,689 8,162 3,891 340 1,583 4,659 1,992 1,597 29,913

Operating expenses (6,590) (6,703) (3,155) (444) (1,145) (3,973) (1,765) (1,786) (25,561)

Operating income 1,099 1,459 736 (104) 438 686 227 (189) 4,352

Net profit (loss) from 

associated entities before 

other items 5 13 (33) 40 (279) 70 30 (159)

Net borrowing costs (791) (791)

Exchangeable securities 

expense (94) (94)

Income tax expense before 

other items (989) (989)

Outside equity interest 

before other items 3 (421) (421)

Profit before other items 1,898

Other revenues before 

income tax 6 47 632 679

Other expenses before 

income tax 6 (69) (21) (967) (1,057)

Income tax expense on 

other items 6 215 215

Net (loss) profit from 

associate other items 5 (162) 257 (25) 70

Outside equity interest 

on other items 3 3 3

Net profit (loss) attributable 

to members of the parent 

entity 1,112 1,404 776 (566) 438 1,013 227 (519) (2,077) 1,808
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Note 2 Business segment data (continued) 
Consolidated 2002 A$ million

Direct

Cable Broadcast

Filmed Network Satellite Magazines Book

Note Entertainment Television Programming Television & Inserts Newspapers Publishing Other Unallocated Total

Sales revenue 7,714 8,160 3,569 1,650 4,604 2,059 1,258 29,014

Operating expenses (6,810) (7,287) (3,189) (1,202) (3,782) (1,835) (1,367) (25,472)

Operating income 904 873 380 448 822 224 (109) 3,542

Net (loss) profit from 

associated entities before 

other items 5 (23) (97) (82) (342) 47 183 (314)

Net borrowing costs (1,000) (1,000)

Exchangeable securities 

expense (93) (93)

Income tax expense before 

other items (640) (640)

Outside equity interest 

before other items 3 (278) (278)

Profit before other items 1,217

Other revenues before 

income tax 6 4,234 1,393 5,627

Other expenses before 

income tax 6 (1,240) (1,689) (14,672) (17,601)

Income tax expense on 

other items 6 (15) (15)

Net loss from associate 

other items 5 (50) (1,045) (25) (1,120)

Outside equity interest 

on other items 3 (70) (70)

Net profit (loss) attributable 

to members of the parent 

entity 881 (464) 2,793 (1,387) 448 844 224 (13,205) (2,096) (11,962)
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Note 2 Business segment data (continued) 
Consolidated 2004 A$ million

Direct

Cable Broadcast

Filmed Network Satellite Magazines Book

Entertainment Television Programming Television & Inserts Newspapers Publishing Other Unallocated Total

Assets

Investments in 

associated entities 120 13 2,218 11,124 473 1,023 14,971

Segment assets 6,493 18,721 8,663 3,501 1,648 7,924 2,724 2,065 51,739

Corporate assets 7,028 7,028

Total assets 6,613 18,734 10,881 14,625 1,648 8,397 2,724 3,088 7,028 73,738

Liabilities

Segment liabilities 3,712 3,006 738 1,312 300 783 546 1,610 12,007

Corporate liabilities 16,204 16,204

Total liabilities 3,712 3,006 738 1,312 300 783 546 1,610 16,204 28,211

Acquisition of property, 

plant and equipment 42 120 36 123 8 104 11 73 517

Acquisition of other long 

lived assets 1 8 58 240 307

Depreciation and 

amortisation 104 136 58 213 7 216 8 102 844

Other non-cash expenses 52 151 38 59 300
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Note 2 Business segment data (continued)
Consolidated 2003 A$ million

Direct

Cable Broadcast

Filmed Network Satellite Magazines Book

Entertainment Television Programming Television & Inserts Newspapers Publishing Other Unallocated Total

Assets

Investments in  

associated entities 99 9 2,585 1,124 590 1,119 5,526

Segment assets 6,468 19,888 9,016 3,559 2,181 7,695 2,927 1,848 53,582

Corporate assets 8,639 8,639

Total assets 6,567 19,897 11,601 4,683 2,181 8,285 2,927 2,967 8,639 67,747

Liabilities

Segment liabilities 3,618 3,968 807 1,415 483 591 759 1,492 13,133

Corporate liabilities 15,893 15,893

Total liabilities 3,618 3,968 807 1,415 483 591 759 1,492 15,893 29,026

Acquisition of property, 

plant and equipment 74 132 69 28 3 93 8 144 551

Acquisition of other long 

lived assets 934 2,024 84 3,042

Depreciation and 

amortisation 129 177 73 44 11 225 9 108 776

Other non-cash expenses 69 21 821 911
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Consolidated

2004 2003 2002

A$ million

Note 3 Outside equity interest

Outside equity interest before Other items (314) (421) (278)

Outside equity interest on Other items 18 3 (70)

(296) (418) (348)

Note 4 Dividends

Dividends declared and proposed during the year:

Class of Shares Dividend per share Franking

Interim Final

Ordinary 1.5 cents 1.5 cents Unfranked 63 63 31

Preferred limited

voting ordinary 3.75 cents 3.75 cents Unfranked 266 241 120

Perpetual preference (a) Unfranked 38 47 52

367 351 203

(a) Adjustable rate cumulative preference dividends as described in Note 23 (b) of the Group’s Full Financial Report.

On 15 October, 2003, a final unfranked dividend of 1.5 cents per ordinary share and 3.75 cents per preferred limited voting

ordinary share totalling $153 million was paid or distributed according to the operation of the Group’s Dividend

Reinvestment Plan.

On 30 April, 2004, an interim unfranked dividend, in respect of profits for the year ended 30 June, 2004 of 1.5 cents per

ordinary share and 3.75 cents per preferred limited voting ordinary share totalling $176 million was paid or distributed

according to the operation of the Group’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan.

On 12 August, 2004, the Directors of The News Corporation Limited recommended the payment on 26 October, 2004, of a final

fully franked dividend of 1.5 cents per ordinary share and 3.75 cents per preferred limited voting ordinary share on the

issued shares at 17 September, 2004, the entitlement date for the final dividend. The final dividend has not been provided for

in the financial statements, in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, as the dividend was not declared and

announced by the Directors prior to 30 June, 2004.

As at 30 June, 2004, following the adoption of the Australian Tax Consolidation legislation, the balance of the franking

account of the parent entity adjusted for franking credits which will arise from the payment of income tax provided for in

the financial statements, and after deducting estimated franking credits of $75.7 million to be used in payment of the final

franked dividend above, is $1.5 million (2003 $0.2 million, 2002 $0.2 million) on a tax paid basis.
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Consolidated

2004 2003 2002

A$ million

Note 5 Associated entities

The Group’s share of the profit (loss) after income

tax of its associated entities consist principally of:

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc (a) 315 132 (51)

Sky Brasil (formerly Net Sat Servicos Ltda) (52) (56) (120)

Innova, S.de R.L de C.V. (Mexico) (8) (37) (92)

FOXTEL (27) (15) (15)

Stream, S.p.A. (b) (294) (66)

Queensland Press Limited 42 33 27

Other associated entities 97 78 3

367 (159) (314)

Other items after income tax (c) (45) 70 (1,120)

Net profit (loss) from associated entities 322 (89) (1,434)

Net profit (loss) from associated entities comprises:

Attributable to joint venture entities 10 (316) (126)

Attributable to other associated entities 312 227 (1,308)

Net profit (loss) from associated entities 322 (89) (1,434)

Net profit (loss) from associated entities comprises:

Profit (loss) before income tax 549 (62) (1,388)

Income tax (227) (27) (46)

Net profit (loss) from associated entities 322 (89) (1,434)

(a) At 30 June, 2002, the Group’s investment in British Sky Broadcasting Group plc (“BSkyB”) was recorded at zero and as a

result the Group ceased to equity account its share of BSkyB’s results. In Fiscal 2002, the Group did not record $135

million of its share of BSkyB’s losses. Subsequently, the Group recommenced equity accounting its share of BSkyB’s

results from 11 November, 2002.

(b) In April 2003, the Group acquired a controlling interest in Stream, which concurrently acquired all of the outstanding

stock of Telepiu, a majority-owned subsidiary of Vivendi Universal. Both Stream and Telepiu were Digital

Broadcasting Satellite Television businesses in Italy. The aggregate consideration paid for Telepiu consisted of €438

million ($711 million) in cash and the assumption of €350 million ($602 million) in indebtedness.

Telepiu has been merged with Stream, and the combined platform has been renamed SKY Italia, which is owned 80.1%

by the Group and 19.9% by Telecom Italia. The results of SKY Italia have been included in the Group’s Consolidated

Statement of Financial Performance from 30 April, 2003, the date of acquisition. As a result of the acquisition,

commencing 30 April, 2003, the Group ceased to equity account its share of Stream’s results.

(c) Associated entities’ Other items for the year ended 30 June, 2004 primarily relate to the Group’s share of the write down

of certain tax assets and legal settlement costs which were partially offset by the gain on the sale of certain

investments by associated entities.

The 2003 Other items primarily reflect the Group’s share of a gain arising from the sale of the publishing assets of

Independent Newspapers Limited, a New Zealand media company. This is partially offset by a charge to reflect the

permanent diminution of the assets of Sky Multi-Country Partners, a Latin American DTH platform, due to the

sustained losses of the platform and the decision of the partners to limit future financial support of this business.

The 2002 Other items primarily represents the Group’s equity accounted share of the write off by its associate BSkyB of

its investment in KirchPayTV.
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Consolidated

2004 2003 2002

A$ million

Note 6 Other items

The profit (loss) from ordinary activities before tax includes the 

following Other items whose disclosure is relevant in 

explaining the financial performance of the Group.

Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (a) (142) 504

Sale of investments (b) 114

Sale of Fox Family Worldwide (c) 2,323

Sale of Echostar shares (d) 468

Sale of Outdoor Life (e) 271

Write down of investment in Gemstar-TV Guide(f) (551) (11,138)

Write down of investment in Knowledge Enterprises (g) (158)

Early extinguishment of debt (h) (18) (143) (191)

Write down of sports rights (i) (1,861)

Write down of investment in Stream (j) (590)

Write down of investment in KirchMedia (k) (460)

Write down of investment in MediaHighway (l) (17)

Dividends income (m) 73

Office closure costs and other (40)

Disposal and write down of other non-current assets (n) (36) (30) (756)

(26) (378) (11,974)

Income tax benefit (expense) attributable to Other items (1) 215 (15)

Other loss after tax (27) (163) (11,989)

Other loss after tax comprises:

Other revenues before income tax 1,484 679 5,627

Other expenses before income tax (1,510) (1,057) (17,601)

Income tax benefit (expense) attributable to Other items (1) 215 (15)

(27) (163) (11,989)

(a) On 13 February, 2004, the Group sold the Los Angeles Dodgers (“Dodgers”), together with Dodger Stadium and the team’s

training facilities in Vero Beach, Florida and the Dominican Republic, to entities owned by Frank McCourt (the

“McCourt Entities”). The gross consideration for the sale of the Dodgers franchise and real estate assets was $616

million (US$421 million), subject to further adjustment. The consideration at closing was comprised of (i) $329 million

(US$225 million) in cash, (ii) a $183 million (US$125 million) two-year note secured by non-team real estate, (iii) a $59

million (US$40 million) four-year note secured by bank letters of credit and (iv) a $45 million (US$31 million) three-year

note that is convertible, at the Group’s option, into preferred equity in the McCourt Entities if unpaid at maturity. The

Group has agreed to remit $73 million (US$50 million) during the first two years following the closing of the transaction

to reimburse the McCourt Entities for certain pre-existing commitments. Pending the final determination of

contractual adjustments, the sale has resulted in an estimated loss of $142 million (US$101 million).

In fiscal 2003, primarily relates to the sale by Fox Entertainment Group (“FEG”), a subsidiary of the Group, of 50 million

shares of its Class A Common Stock for net proceeds of approximately $1.8 billion (US$1.2 billion). Upon consummation

of the offering, in November 2002, the Group’s equity and voting interest in FEG decreased from 85.32% and 97.84% to

80.58% and 97%, respectively. The resulting gain was recorded as Other revenue.

(b) Fiscal 2004 amount primarily relates to Group’s August 2003 sale of its entire 8.14% cost investment in SKY Perfect

Communications Inc. (“SKY PerfecTV!”). The Group’s 182,000 shares of SKY PerfecTV! were sold for total consideration

of $249 million . The Group recognised a gain of approximately $116 million on the sale, which is reflected in Other items 
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Note 6 Other items (continued)

for the year ended 30 June, 2004. In addition, in December 2003, FEG sold its 50% direct ownership interests in

SportsChannel Chicago Associates (“SportsChannel Chicago”) and SportsChannel Pacific Associates (“SportsChannel Bay

Area”) (collectively the “SportsChannels”) to subsidiaries of Regional Programming Partners (“RPP”) for consideration of

$215 million (US$150 million). This consideration was paid in the form of two three-year promissory notes issued by the

subsidiaries of RPP, which own only the acquired interests in the SportsChannels, in an aggregate principal amount of $215

million (US$150 million) and bearing interest at prime plus 1% per annum. The notes are secured by a pledge of 100% of the

interests in SportsChannel Bay Area. Upon the close of this sale, the SportsChannels are held 100% by RPP and indirectly

60% by Rainbow Media Sports Holdings, Inc. and 40% by FEG. The Group recognised a net gain on the sale of the

SportsChannels of $8 million (US$6 million) for the year ended 30 June 2004. Also during fiscal 2004 the Group sold its 40%

interest in the Staples Center for aggregate consideration of $188 million (US$128 million). The Group has recorded a loss on

the sale of the interest in the Staples Center of approximately $10 million (US$7 million). In connection with the sale of

this interest, the Group was released from several guarantees in the aggregate amount of $32 million (US$22.6 million)

outstanding at the time of the sale.

(c) In October 2001, a subsidiary of the Group, Fox Broadcasting Company, Haim Saban and the other shareholders of Fox

Family Worldwide, Inc (“FFW”), sold FFW to The Walt Disney Company (“Disney”) for total consideration of

approximately $10.3 billion (including the assumption of certain debt), of which approximately $3.2 billion was in

consideration of the Group’s interest in FFW. As a result of this transaction, the Group recognised a gain on sale of

$2,323 million. In addition, the Group sublicensed certain post-season Major League Baseball (“MLB”) games through

the 2006 MLB season to Disney for aggregate consideration of approximately $1.2 billion, payable over the entire period

of the sublicense.

(d) During fiscal 2002, the Group sold its investment in EchoStar Communications Corporation for total consideration of

$1,312 million and recorded a gain on the sale of $468 million.

(e) On 25 July, 2001, as a result of the exercise of rights by existing shareholders, FEG acquired 50.23% of Outdoor Life

Network, LLC (“Outdoor Life”) for approximately $608 million. This acquisition resulted in FEG owning 83.18% of

Outdoor Life. On 23 August, 2001, a shareholder of Outdoor Life exercised its option to acquire FEG’s ownership interest

in Outdoor Life for $977 million in cash. Upon the closing of the sale, the Group recognised a gain of $271 million.

(f) As at 30 June, 2002, the Group owned 175 million shares in Gemstar-TV Guide International Inc. (“Gemstar-TV Guide”)

and recorded a charge to reflect the permanent impairment in carrying value of $11.1 billion. The charge was

determined by reference to Gemstar-TV Guide’s share price at 28 June, 2002 of US$5.39 ($9.56) per share. During fiscal

2003, Gemstar-TV Guide’s market value continued to decline and the Group considered several factors to determine if

an additional charge was required. As a result of this review, the Group recorded a $551 million charge to reduce the

carrying value of the investment in Gemstar-TV Guide to US$3.75 ($6.66) per share to reflect a permanent decline in

value.

(g) In fiscal 2003, the Group recorded an impairment charge of $158 million related to the Group’s carrying value of its

investment in Knowledge Enterprises, Inc. (“Knowledge Enterprises”). The charge was based on Knowledge Enterprises’

recent equity rights offering and reflects the estimated recoverable value of this investment.

(h) On 17 May, 2004, News America Incorporated. (“NAI”), a subsidiary of the Group, terminated its remarketing agreement

with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated with respect to its US$150 million aggregate principal

amount of the MOPPRSSM due 2034. As a result of the termination, the MOPPRSSM were not remarketed and on 21 May,

2004 NAI purchased the 6.703% MOPPRSSM from the beneficial owners at a price equal to the principal amount plus any

accrued and unpaid interest being $7 million (US$5 million). The Group has recognised a loss of approximately 

$18 million (US$13 million) on the early extinguishment of the MOPPRSSM which is included within Other items.
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Fiscal 2003 amount primarily relates to the March 2003, purchase of approximately 74% of the Group’s outstanding

US$500 million aggregate principal 8 1/2% Senior Notes due February 2005 at a premium, plus accrued interest. The

Group recognised a loss of $76 million (US$45 million) on the early redemption of 8 1/2% Senior Notes which is included

within Other expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance. Also in March 2003, 8,247,953 Trust Originated

Preferred Securities (“TOPrS”) were redeemed by the Group using proceeds from the issuance of Beneficial Unsecured

Exchangeable Securities (“BUCS”). The Group recognised a loss of $64 million (US$37 million) on early redemption of

the TOPrS (including the write off of deferred issuance costs) which is included within Other expenses in the Statement

of Financial Performance.

During the fiscal 2002 year, the Group extinguished a substantial portion of debt owing on 10 1/8% Senior Debentures due

in October 2012 and on 8 5/8% Senior Notes due February 2003. The Group recognised a loss of $64 million and $47 million,

respectively, due to the early extinguishment of debt. In June 2002 the Group and Fox Sports Networks, LLC, an indirect

subsidiary of the Group, irrevocably called for the redemption of all outstanding 8.875% Senior Notes due August 2007

and the 9.75% Senior Discounted Notes due August 2007. The Group recognised a loss of $80 million on the irrevocable

early extinguishment of the debt. The redemption was completed in August 2002.

(i) As a result of the downturn in sports related advertising during fiscal 2002, together with the reduction in long term

forecast advertising growth rates, in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors re-evaluated the

recoverability of the costs of certain sports contracts, principally in the United States. Accordingly, the Group

recorded a one-time Other expense of $1,861 million relating to National Football League (“NFL”) ($753 million),

National Association of Stock Car Auto Racing (“NASCAR”) ($578 million), Major League Baseball (“MLB”) ($437

million) and non-US Cricket programming rights ($93 million).

(j) Stream was a satellite pay-TV provider in Italy. During fiscal 2002, the Group wrote down its investment in Stream by

$590 million to an amount considered by the Directors to be the recoverable amount at 30 June, 2002.

(k) During fiscal 2002, given the financial uncertainties surrounding KirchPayTV and its parent Kirch Gruppe, the Group

recognised a charge of $460 million to fully write down its investment in KirchMedia.

(l) During 2004 the Group’s majority owned subsidiary, NDS Group plc, acquired the MediaHighway middleware business

and certain related licensed patents for a total consideration of $106 million (€60 million) in cash. The Group concluded

that certain intangible assets recognised on acquisition were not supported by projections of the incremental future

cash flows attributable to the acquired business. Accordingly the Group has recorded an impairment charge against

these intangibles of $17 million (£6.5 million).

(m)During 2004, the Group received a special dividend from Monarchy Enterprises Holdings B.V., a cost based investment.

The portion of the dividend representing a distribution of the Group’s share of cumulative earnings of the investee of

$73 million is reflected within Other items whilst the balance has been reflected as a return of capital within Other

investments.

(n) In fiscal 2004, the Group wrote down certain print and cable assets. During fiscal 2003, the Group disposed of certain

interactive and music related assets for aggregate consideration of $175 million, and also wrote down certain other

sporting and television assets. The 30 June, 2003 amount also includes a provision for an arbitration award that was

issued in favour of PanAmSat International Systems (“PanAmSat”) against the Group. In January 2004, the Group and

PanAmSat entered into a Confidential Settlement Agreement and Releases (“the Agreement”). The Agreement settled

the dispute regarding satellite transponder capacity over India and did not have a material impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial performance, cash flows or financial position. During fiscal 2002, the Group wrote down certain

non-current assets, mainly interactive, media and sporting assets, to their recoverable amount. The Group also

disposed of various non-current assets for an aggregate consideration of $96 million. During that year the Group also

settled certain liabilities owing to MCI Communications Corporation, including accrued interest, of US$1,017 million

($1,926 million) for US$930 million ($1,760 million), consisting of 121.2 million preferred limited voting ordinary shares

valued at US$680 million ($1,288 million) and US$250 million ($473 million) in cash. The Group recognised a gain of $166

million on the settlement.



Note 7 Items recognised directly in equity

These items relate to an increase in associated entity reserves in fiscal 2003 of $152 million (2002 $267 million reduction).

During 2003 BSkyB issued new equity as consideration for several transactions. These issuances reduced the Group’s

ownership interest in BSkyB from 36.2% (2002) to 35.4% (2003). In accordance with AASB 1016 “Accounting for Investments in

Associates”, in the year to 30 June, 2002, the Group recorded a decrease in its investment and a corresponding decrease in

reserves of $240 million. In the year to 30 June, 2003, the Group recorded an increase in its investment in BSkyB and a

corresponding increase in reserves of $152 million.

Consolidated

2004 2003

A$ million

Note 8 Retained profits

Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year 1,137 1

Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 2,312 1,808

Dividends provided for or paid (367) (351)

Aggregate amount transferred to reserves (400) (321)

Retained profits at the end of the financial year 2,682 1,137

Dividends on ordinary and preferred limited voting ordinary shares are paid out of the retained profits of the parent entity,

The News Corporation Limited. The parent entity has retained profits as at 30 June, 2004 of $19.7 billion (2003 $17.8 billion).

Note 9 Hughes Transaction

On 22 December, 2003, the Group acquired a 34% interest in Hughes Electronics Corporation (“Hughes”) for total

consideration of approximately $9.3 billion (US$6.8 billion). General Motors Corporation (“GM”) sold its 19.8 % interest in

Hughes to the Group in exchange for approximately $4.2 billion (US$3.1 billion) in cash, and 28.6 million American

Depositary Shares, each representing four News Corporation preferred limited voting ordinary shares (“News Corporation

Preferred ADSs”), valued at approximately $1.1 billion (US$0.8 billion). The Group acquired 14.2% of Hughes from the

former GM Class H common stockholders in exchange for approximately 102.1 million News Corporation Preferred ADSs

valued at $4.0 billion (US$2.9 billion). Immediately following the acquisition, the Group transferred its entire 34% interest

in Hughes to Fox Entertainment Group, Inc. (“FEG”) in exchange for two promissory notes totalling $6.2 billion (US$4.5

billion) and approximately 74.5 million shares of FEG’s Class A common stock valued at $3.1 billion (US$2.3 billion) (the

“Exchange”). The issuance of approximately 74.5 million shares of FEG’s Class A common stock to the Group increased its

equity interest in FEG from approximately 80.6% to approximately 82% while its voting power remained at approximately

97%. This transfer resulted in the Group recording an increase in Outside equity interests in controlled entities and a

corresponding increase in Publishing rights, titles and television licences of approximately $214 million (US$158 million),

which is not reflected in the Statement of Cash Flows.

Subsequent to the above transaction, Hughes changed its corporate name to The DIRECTV Group, Inc. (“DTV”).
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Note 10 Proposal to reincorporate in the United States

In April 2004, the Group announced that it would pursue a reorganisation that would change the Group’s place of

incorporation from Australia to the United States. In August 2004, the Group announced that a Special Committee of Non-

executive Directors and the Board of Directors of the Group have unanimously recommended the proposed reorganisation

of the Group.

The proposed reorganisation will be accomplished under Australian law whereby existing holders of the Group’s ordinary

and preferred shares, including those ordinary shares and preferred limited voting ordinary shares represented by

American Depositary Shares (“ADSs”), will have their shares cancelled and receive in exchange shares of voting and non-

voting common stock of a newly formed Delaware corporation (“News Corp U.S.”) at a one-for-two ratio. In connection with

this reorganisation, the Group would acquire from the Murdoch Interests the approximate 58% interest in Queensland Press

Pty Ltd. (“QPL”) not already owned by the Group through the acquisition of the Cruden Group of companies. The Murdoch

Interests are certain trusts, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Rupert Murdoch, members of his family and certain

charities.

The principal assets of the Cruden Group are shares of the Group and a 58% interest in QPL. QPL owns a publishing

business which includes two metropolitan and eight regional newspapers in Queensland, Australia, as well as shares of

News Corporation.

The Special Committee retained independent legal counsel, and retained UBS as independent financial adviser, to advise 

it with respect of the Cruden/QPL transaction and the reincorporation. The Special Committee has unanimously

recommended the transactions to the Board. In reaching its recommendation, the Special Committee considered the

fairness opinion of UBS Australia with respect to the consideration to be paid by the Group in the Cruden/QPL transaction

and financial and market advice given by UBS with respect to the reincorporation.

The proposed reorganisation and the relevant documentation is subject to approval by the Australian Securities and

Investments Commission (ASIC) and the Australian Federal Court for approval to convene a meeting of News Corporation’s

ordinary and preferred shareholders and option holders so that they can formally consider and vote on the proposal. 

The Group has appointed Grant Samuel & Associates Pty Ltd as an independent expert to opine on the fairness of the

proposed transactions. If approved, the proposed transactions are expected to be completed by the end of this calendar year.

As a result of the reorganisation, News Corp U.S., which will be called “News Corporation”, will become the new parent

company of the Group. News Corp U.S. will have a primary listing on the New York Stock Exchange and secondary listings

on the Australian Stock Exchange and the London Stock Exchange.

The Special Committee, advised by UBS, and the Murdoch Interests have agreed to a valuation of $2.95 billion for the entire

QPL publishing business, less the net debt of QPL which is estimated to be approximately $488 million at closing plus $21.5

million which is the market value of QPL’s non-publishing assets. The Murdoch Interests will receive voting common stock

in News Corp U.S. in exchange for the value of their 58% pro rata ownership of the QPL publishing business, net of debt,

based on the average closing price of the shares of the Group on the Australian Stock Exchange for the five trading days

ending on 15 July, 2004 ($12.13 per ordinary share and $11.35 per preferred share). In exchange for the Group shares owned

directly through the Cruden Group and indirectly (through QPL) by the Cruden Group, the Murdoch Interests will receive

shares of News Corp U.S. in the same exchange ratio as all other holders of Group shares in the reorganisation. The shares

of News Corp U.S. non-voting stock that the Murdoch Interests receive will be reduced by the number of shares equal in

value to the net debt of the Cruden Group which is being assumed by the Group in the transaction, which is estimated to be

$327 million at closing. After the transactions are completed, the Murdoch Interests will own approximately 29.47% of the

voting shares of News Corp U.S., which is slightly less than the 29.86% of the voting shares of the Group that the Murdoch

Interests currently control.
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Note 11 Subsequent events

In May 2004, the Group ended the transfer term under the New Millennium II film funding agreement and will no longer

draw any borrowings under the Facility. In accordance with the terms of the termination, the Group will retire $912 million

(US$636 million) of the Facility in fiscal 2005 and $33 million (US$23 million) in fiscal 2006. In July 2004, the Group retired

$538 million (US$375 million) of the amount due in fiscal 2005 with $374 million (US$261 million) remaining to be retired in

fiscal 2005.

In July 2004, the Group paid $411 million (€236 million) to retire the remaining 5.625% Guaranteed Notes due 2004 (the

“Eurobonds”). The Eurobonds repayment included principal of $390 million (€224 million) and accrued interest of $21 million

(€12 million). The Eurobonds and New Millennium II agreement are described in further detail in Note 19 of the Group’s Full

Financial Report.

In July 2004, the Group guaranteed the obligations of Sky Brasil, an associated entity of the Group, under a $301 million

(US$210 million) credit agreement with JP Morgan Chase Bank and Citibank N.A.
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Note 12 International Financial Reporting Standards

For reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2005, all entities preparing general purpose financial reports under

the Corporations Act 2001 will be required to adopt Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards

(“IFRS”). Presently, the adoption of IFRS would be first reflected in the Group’s financial statements for the half-year

ending 31 December, 2005 and year ending 30 June, 2006. The extent of the impact of IFRS on the Group’s financial reporting

requirements will be impacted by the outcome of plans to change the Company’s place of incorporation to the United

States by the end of calendar 2004 (refer Note 10).

Adoption of IFRS could have a material impact on the Group’s financial position and reported financial performance.

Whilst it is not possible to quantify the impact of adopting IFRS at this time, key differences in accounting policies that

are expected to arise from adopting Australian equivalents to IFRS are as follows:

Intangible assets

Prior to 30 June, 1991, certain Publishing rights, titles and television licences were revalued in excess of cost based on their

fair values as determined by directors. In addition, certain amounts recorded within Publishing rights, titles and

television licences have been recognised other than through acquisition. On transition to IFRS, these amounts would be

required to be derecognised against opening retained earnings.

Income tax

The Group currently applies an income statement approach for tax effect accounting. IFRS requires a balance sheet

approach under which temporary differences are identified for each asset and liability rather than accounting for the

effects of timing and permanent differences between taxable income and accounting profit. Deferred taxes for fair value

adjustments arising from business combinations will need to be provided and will affect the determination of goodwill on

future acquisitions.

Employee benefits

Under IFRS, the Group will be required to recognise the net surplus or deficit between plan assets and accrued benefits in

its sponsored defined benefit superannuation plans in the Statement of Financial Position with movements in the net

position of each plan recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance each year. Currently, the Group recognises

pension costs at the required level of contributions made or an actuarially determined amount.

In addition, a remuneration expense will be recognised for share-based compensation provided to employees in respect of

services rendered. No cost is currently recorded for options issued to employees under the Group’s various share option

arrangements.

Investments

Non-associate investments are currently recorded at cost. Under IFRS, such investments are to be carried at fair value with

changes in value recorded as a movement in equity, unless fair value cannot be reliably determined.

Financial instruments

There is no existing Australian standard dealing with the recognition and measurement of financial instruments. Under

IFRS, certain derivatives and embedded derivative contracts will be required to be recorded at fair value with changes in

value being recorded through the profit and loss.
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The Directors of The News Corporation Limited declare that:

a) the Concise Financial Report set out on pages 60 to 79 complies with Accounting Standard AASB 1039 “Concise

Financial Reports”; and

b) has been derived from and is consistent with the Full Financial Report for the financial year.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of Directors.

K R Murdoch AC

Director

D F DeVoe

Director

12 August, 2004
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Independent audit report to the members of The News Corporation Limited
Matters relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Concise Financial Report

This audit report relates to the concise financial report of The News Corporation Limited (“the parent entity”) for the
year ended 30 June 2004 included on the parent entity’s web site.  The parent entity’s directors are responsible for the
integrity of the parent entity’s web site. We have not been engaged to report on the integrity of the parent entity’s web
site. The audit report refers only to the statements named below.  It does not provide an opinion on any other information
which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements.  If users of this report are concerned with the inherent risks
arising from electronic data communications they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited concise financial
report to confirm the information included in the audited concise financial report presented on this web site.

Scope
The concise financial report and directors’ responsibility

The concise financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance, statement
of cash flows and accompanying notes to the financial statements for the consolidated entity for the year ended 30 June
2004.  The consolidated entity comprises both the parent entity and the entities it controlled during the year.

The directors of the parent entity are responsible for preparing a concise financial report that complies with Accounting
Standard AASB 1039 “Concise Financial Reports”, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001.  This includes responsibility
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud
and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the concise financial report.

Audit approach
We conducted an independent audit on the concise financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the members 
of the parent entity.  Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide
reasonable assurance as to whether the concise financial report is free of material misstatement.  The nature of an audit
is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal
control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence.  Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all
material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the concise financial report is presented fairly in
accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 1039 “Concise Financial Reports”.  We formed our audit opinion on the basis
of these procedures, which included:

• testing that the information in the concise financial report is consistent with the full financial report, and

• examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts, discussion and analysis, and 
other disclosures in the concise financial report that were not directly derived from the full financial report.

We have also performed an independent audit of the full financial report of the parent entity for the year ended 30 June
2004.  Our audit report on the full financial report was signed on 27 August 2004, and was not subject to any qualification.
For a better understanding of our approach to the audit of the full financial report, this report should be read in
conjunction with our audit report on the full financial report.

Independence
We are independent of the parent entity, and have met the independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001.  In addition to our audit of the full and concise financial reports, we were
engaged to undertake the services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of the full financial report.  The
provision of these services has not impaired our independence.

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the concise financial report of The News Corporation Limited complies with Accounting Standard AASB
1039 “Concise Financial Reports”.

Ernst & Young C N Westworth

Partner

Sydney

27 August, 2004
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Corporate Ownership – Ordinary Shares
Number of Ordinary Shareholders 64,681

Voting rights

On show of hands – one vote for each member

On poll – one vote for each share held

Distribution of shareholding
1-1,000 39,376

1,001-5,000 20,699

5,001-10,000 2,591

10,001-100,000 1,783

100,001 and over 232

Holding less than a marketable parcel 3,167

Top twenty shareholders as at 12 August, 2004
Cruden Investments Pty Limited and controlled entities 626,966,242

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 598,065,003

Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited 170,451,885

JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 169,314,475

National Nominees Limited 154,328,405

ANZ Nominees Limited 63,672,664

RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 28,255,047

Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 25,715,021

Queensland Investment Corporation 16,818,600

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 13,894,119

AMP Life Limited 11,790,008

Bond Street Custodians Limited 5,877,357

IAG Nominees Pty Limited 5,794,741

Government Superannuation Office 3,825,626

PSS Board 3,236,339

Australian Foundation Investment Company Limited 3,140,578

Equity Trustees Limited 2,942,483

Invia Custodian Pty Limited 2,938,617

Suncorp Custodian Services Pty Limited 2,758,960

CSS Board 2,665,420

1,912,451,590

Percentage of issued ordinary shares held by twenty largest holders 91.07%

Substantial Shareholders
Cruden Investments Pty Limited and controlled entities 626,966,242

Citicorp Inc. 224,121,753

Liberty Media Corporation 192,000,000

FMR Corporation 151,126,337
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Corporate Ownership – Preferred Limited Voting Ordinary Shares
Number of Preferred Limited Voting Ordinary Shareholders 18,907

A holder of a preferred limited voting ordinary share (“preferred share”) shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting of

the members of The News Corporation Limited by virtue of holding such share mutatis mutandis in the same manner and

subject to the same conditions as the holder of an ordinary share (including as to the number of votes which may be cast on

a poll) but only in the following circumstances and not otherwise:

(i) on a proposal to reduce the share capital of The News Corporation Limited, or on a proposal to wind up or during the

winding up of The News Corporation Limited, or on a proposal for the disposal of the whole of the property, business and

undertaking of The News Corporation Limited;

(ii) on a proposal that affects right attached to the preferred share;

(iii) during a period during which a Dividend (or part of a Dividend) in respect of the preferred share is in arrears; or

(iv) on a resolution to approve the terms of a buy-back agreement.

Distribution of shareholding
1-1,000 10,295

1,001-5,000 6,542

5,001-10,000 1,088

10,001-100,000 796

100,001 and over 186

Holding less than a marketable parcel 1,213

Top twenty shareholders as at 12 August, 2004
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 2,481,574,827

JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 361,339,703

Cruden Investments Pty Limited and controlled entities 217,187,778

National Nominees Limited 204,481,509

Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited 187,857,265

RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 57,132,891

Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 44,504,442

Queensland Investment Corporation 42,917,629

ANZ Nominees Limited 40,873,985

AMP Life Limited 31,770,211

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 17,389,953

IAG Nominees Pty Limited 12,181,591

Warnford Nominees Pty Limited 11,583,759

Government Superannuation Office 10,583,461

Victorian Workcover Authority 7,476,966

Transport Accident Commission 6,087,391

Suncorp Custodian Services Pty Limited 5,932,754

Bond Street Custodians Limited 5,846,806

Ogier Trustee Limited 5,618,978

PSS Board 5,495,411

3,757,837,310

Percentage of Preferred Limited Voting Ordinary Shares held by twenty largest holders 97.10%

Head Office Registered Office

2 Holt Street 121 King William Street

Sydney NSW 2010 Adelaide SA 5000

Australia Australia
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Shareholder Information (continued)
for the year ended 30 June, 2004
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Board of Directors and Executive Management Committee

Directors 

K. Rupert Murdoch
Chairman and Chief Executive
News Corporation 

Peter Barnes
President
Winemakers’ Federation of Australia

Geoffrey C. Bible
Chairman
Wagga Enterprises

Chase Carey
President and Chief Executive Officer
The DIRECTV Group, Inc.

Peter Chernin
President and Chief Operating Officer
News Corporation

Kenneth E. Cowley
Chairman
Independent Newspapers Limited

David F. DeVoe
Chief Financial Officer
News Corporation

Viet Dinh
Professor of Law
Georgetown University

Rod Eddington
Chief Executive
British Airways

Andrew S.B. Knight
Director
Rothschild Investment Trust C.P.

Lachlan Murdoch
Deputy Chief Operating Officer
News Corporation

Thomas J. Perkins
Partner
Kleiner, Perkins, Caulfield & Byers

Stanley S. Shuman
Managing Director
Allen & Company LLC

Arthur M. Siskind
Group General Counsel
News Corporation

John L. Thornton
Professor of Global Leadership
Tsinghua University of Beijing

Executive Management Committee

K. Rupert Murdoch
Chairman and Chief Executive
News Corporation 

Paul Carlucci
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
News America Marketing

Peter Chernin
President and Chief Operating Officer
News Corporation

David F. DeVoe
Chief Financial Officer
News Corporation

Anthea Disney
Executive Vice President, Content
News Corporation

Jane Friedman
President and Chief Executive Officer
HarperCollins

James Gianopulos
Chairman
Fox Filmed Entertainment

Gary Ginsberg
Executive Vice President,
Investor Relations &
Corporate Communications
News Corporation

John Hartigan
Chief Executive Officer
News Limited 

David Hill
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Fox Sports Television Group 

Les Hinton
Executive Chairman
News International

Lachlan Murdoch
Deputy Chief Operating Officer
News Corporation

Abe Peled
Chief Executive Officer
NDS

Martin Pompadur
Executive Vice President
News Corporation

Thomas Rothman
Chairman
Fox Filmed Entertainment

Arthur Siskind
Group General Counsel
News Corporation



BOOK PUBLISHING

TELEVISION
Cable Network Programming

Newspapers
MAGAZINES & INSERTS

FILMED ENTERTAINMENT

Direct Broadcast Satellite Television
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